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ABOUT US

We empower businesses to achieve their business goals by fully 

leveraging technology, while prov iding an unparalleled, 

personalized client and employee expe�ience.

Our founders recognized that the business world was changing, but 

many traditional IT organizations were unprepared for these 

changes. They saw an oppo�tunity to create a new kind of 

organization that would position them for success in this new era.

Diensten Tech Ltd (DTL) is an IT Se�vice Organization, having focus on Professional Se�vices, 

Corporate Training including eLea�ning Digital Content Solutions and Managed Se�vices to provide 

business benefits to their customers and prospects in the sho�test possible time with high quality 

delive�y solutions at competitive rates.

We are a next-generation IT consultancy se�vice provider that helps enterp�ises reimagine their 

businesses for the digital age. We provide end-to-end professional solutions to make large 

companies and organizations more competitive by combining in-depth knowledge of a wide range 

of business sectors and innovative technologies with a fully collaborative approach. We are a 

lifelong lea�ning pa�tner for enterp�ises, helping them build skills in emerging technologies at scale.
Our Corporate Training division helps build innovative lea�ning modules for organizations in the 

workplace by st�uctu�ing a sma�ter workforce, suppo�ting changes and d�iving growth.

Our Company with an expe�t panel reaches out to a wide range of IT suppo�t and consultancy 

se�vices related to IT Skilled Staffing Solutions, IT Training, Development and Capacity Building.
Our trained employee base whom we hire, train and deploy on our client sites based on type of 

agreements with them we have a strong national presence.

We provide a value-d�iven approach with a unique blend of highly-skilled specialists, software 

enginee�ing expe�tise, and flexible engagement models. We deliver an unparalleled personalized 

client expe�ience resulting in a long-lasting t�usted pa�tnership a valid extension of your IT 

organization.

DTL leadership has spent months researching companies that were already in existence and 

decided that they didn't want to build another company like them rather to sta�t something different 

entirely: One that would be unique and impactful. These visiona�ies wanted to focus on providing 

businesses with IT staffing se�vices and training, but also knew they would need more than just 

technical expe�tise when it came time to implement those solutions. They needed guidance on how 

best to use technology and create an environment where employees could th�ive as well as 

customers could benefit from using their products or se�vices.
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

We provide IT staff augmentation se�vices across va�ious indust�ies viz. Info�mation Technology 
se�vice, banking and financial se�vices, automotive and enginee�ing, telecom, healthcare, Retail, 
and Ente�tainment. Any organization big or small is st�uggling to deal with ever-changing increased 
gove�nment regulations and volatile market demands.

When things are so unce�tain, organizations may not want to hire pe�manent employees on a full-
time basis, recent COVID-19 pandemic is ve�y recent proof of that. Business houses want the 
flexibility of an agile, on-demand workforce who is equipped to �un their business operations just 
the way they want them to.

We provide reliable staffing solutions on a contract basis that offer the ability to build our client's 
staff strength without absorbing them full-time, assist overloaded employees du�ing c�itical times, 
and keep projects moving. We offer full-se�vice, cost-effective, and efficient Human Resource 
Management se�vices to organizations that may not have the necessa�y infrast�ucture or inclination 
to pe�fo�m these manpower-intensive tasks.

We offer tempora�y staffing se�vices under our staffing business. We provide businesses with rapid 
access to a highly qualified and productive pool of candidates to give them the flexibility and agility 
they need to respond to changing business needs. We identify qualified job seekers across 
locations under the info�mation technology indust�y and functions, whom we hire as our Associate 
Employees before placing them with our clients.

This way we simplify professional se�vices and hi�ing so that the organizations can focus on their 
eve�yday company operations. We manage all c�ucial tasks, including hi�ing, selecting, paying, and 
making sala�ies.

One of the best tempora�y PS fi�ms, we use SaaS-based tools to keep track of employees' time, 
attendance, and leaves and can offer qualified personnel at a reasonable p�ice. Fu�the�more, our 
integrated HRMS solution guarantees the co�rectness, enables more automation, avoids repetition, 
and ensures that all systems are managed consistently, which boosts productivity and equips HR 
teams to deliver better and more reliable repo�ting.
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CORPORATE TRAINING

Under this segment of our se�vice po�tfolio we provide Training Se�vices, where we focus on 
info�mation technology, soft skills/behavioral, and domain-specific lea�ning solutions that work for 
our client's business.

If broadly catego�ized we provide consulting, training, application suppo�t, and IT skills & 
Technology training. These are some of the training we provide under the Corporate Training 
Se�vice catego�y:

Application Development

Mobile Apps Development Android/IOS

ERP Applications (SAP/Oracle/MS Dynamics)

Database Management

A�tificial Intelligence/Machine Lea�ning

Data Science

Cyber Secu�ity

Network Administration,

IT Infrast�ucture Management

Project Management

Soft Skills/Behavioural

Domain Specific Training

Induction Trainings

Business Process Training

We fi�mly believe in the strength of corporate training, be it making the employees skilled or aligning 
teams for company goals. DTL offers se�vices that help improve parameters impo�tant for a credible 
and smoothly working organization. Accessing our corporate training se�vices ensures job 
satisfaction, and brand reputation increases employee talent and retention rate, and maintains 
healthy competition within the organization.

We suppo�t employees in increasing their morale and productivity. Through our se�vices, a 
company can provide its employees with the tools and expe�tise to keep ahead of market trends and 
hone their existing talents by providing workshops, seminars, and programs. Employees can 
improve the skills and competencies necessa�y to succeed in their roles through hands-on 
activities, team-building exercises, lectures, and examinations. When effectively conducted, our 
training also provides an essential fo�um for employees to lea�n from one another and create 
relationships based on t�ust. Companies may make sure their staff members are prepared for 
success both now and in the future.
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ABOUT DTL

Corporate Office (Noida, UP)

Registered Office (Delhi)

Branch Office :
a) Gu�ugram
b) Hyderabad
c) Bengalu�u
d) Mumbai
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WHY DTL??

à Unique blend of staffing & training

à Consolidating & moving from unorganised to organized

à CrossIndust�y Expe�tise Auto, BFSI, Consumer,IT, MFG, SupplyChain, Telecom OnG

à AI led surge in demand, GCCs setting up in India & IT Secto�'s big Oppo�tunity in Plug & 
Play, Need Based Manpower.
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VISION 
AND 
MISSION

Our goal is to provide our clients with a balanced approach to 

technology development and management that will allow them to 

continue growing in an efficient manner while ensu�ing their business 

remains competitive.

Our mission is to help our clients achieve their goals by providing 

world-class, cost-effective business se�vice solutions that are 

designed to deliver maximum value and satisfaction.

In a world of ever-changing Technology requirements our aim to be 

the premier provider of IT talent to its customers. It aims to do this by 

building a large base of software professionals that can be provided 

on demand to its customers, thereby giving them the flexibility to 

scale up ( or down) their teams in line with the customers needs. 

Equally it aims to have enough clients so that it's team of engineers 

always have oppo�tunities to be deployed on and have minimal gaps 

between assignments. To achieve this goal we will work towards 

becoming the supplier of choice to not only all the large IT companies 

but also to GCC's and end user companies that will have ongoing 

requirements for software enginee�ing staff. In addition we will look to 

consolidate the on demand IT talent space by acqui�ing multiple 

companies who have built businesses in this space.
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CERTIFICATIONS 

9



PROMOTERS

MR. ABHISHEK SINGHANIA 
(Promoter & Director)

Scion of India's renowned

 business dynasty, 

spearheads the company's 

worldwide operations.

His jou�ney through the 

JK Organization provided 

him with invaluable expe�tise 

in diverse facets of 

JK businesses, orchestrating 

t�iumphant national 

and global expansion

 initiatives.

MR. VIPUL PRAKASH
(Promoter & Managing Director)

Prolific se�ial entrepreneur 

and seasoned investor. 

Over 50 investments in 

early-stage enterp�ises, he has 

nu�tured 12 pionee�ing 

rec�uiting-first 

Companies to f�uition.

Vipul's cont�ibutions extend 

beyond the corporate realm, 

as he has se�ved on the boards 

of Action for India and the 

Delhi chapter of the Entrepreneur 

Organization, fu�ther 

highlighting his commitment to 

entrepreneurship and 

social impact.
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

SATISH  CHANDRA GUPTA

An IT indust�y veteran with 50+ 
years of expe�ience. He b�ings a 
wealth of knowledge & market 

perspective. His long 
management & operations 

expe�ience has proven to be an 
invaluable asset in growing DTL 

as a global se�vice provider.

SANJAY JAIN

The CFO of Jaykay 
Enterp�ises Limited, l
ooks after the group's 

strategy and Investments. 
He also se�ves on Board of 
va�ious listed and unlisted 

companies. He is a qualified 
Cha�tered Accountant.

SUNAINA GERA

An entrepreneur and investor 
with extensive expe�ience in 

Travel Indust�y, Inte�ior 
Designing & Real Estate Indust�y. 

She holds a degree in English 
Literature from St Stephens, 

Diploma in Inte�ior Design, and a 
ce�tified LEED AP

KANIKA VASWANI

Founder of WEN-Women 
Entrepreneur Network. She 

sta�ted businesses from scratch 
for va�ious ve�ticals like Energy, 

Life Sciences Automotive. 
Telecom, Media, Enginee�ing & 

Manufactu�ing.

MANOJ KUMAR

32 years of in-depth 
understanding of the IT business 

across indust�y across No�th 
Ame�ica, Asia Pacific and India. 

Seasoned and skilled. 
conceptualizing and sta�ting 

business from scratch into Profit 
Centres
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the members of M/S Diensten Tech 

Limited (CIN: U74140DL2007PLC160160) will be deemed to be held at the Registered Office at 7th 
thFloor, A-2, LSC, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash-II, South Delhi- 110048, on F�iday, the 27  September, 

2024 at 11.00 A.M to transact the following business through Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”):

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 

31st March 2024, including Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of 

the Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and 

Repo�ts of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 01014176) Director of the Company who 

retires from office by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re- appointment and for the 

said purpose to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without 

modification(s) as an Ordina�y Resolution.

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 01014176), Director of the Company, who retires by 

rotation be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1.    Increase in Autho�ised Share Capital of the Company and Alteration of Capital Clause of 

Memorandum and A�ticles of Association of the Company.

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following 

resolution as an Ordina�y Resolution: -

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) 

and the Rules framed thereunder by the Members of the Company, consent of the Members of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded for increase in the Autho�ised Share Capital of the 

Company from existing Rs. 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crore) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One 

Crore) shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crore) divided into 

1,50,00,000 (One Crore and fifty Lacs) shares of Rs. 10 each ranking pa�i passu in all respect 

with the existing Equity Shares of the Company as per the Memorandum and A�ticles of 

Association of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, consent of the Members of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded, for alteration of Clause V of the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company by substituting in its place, the following:- “V. The Autho�ised 

Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- [Rupees Fifteen Crores only] divided into 

1,50,00,000 [One Crore and Fifty lacs] Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- [Rupees Ten only] each”.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the 

Board / Committee of the Board or any officer(s) autho�ized by the Board of Directors, be and 
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are hereby autho�ized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever, including 

seeking all necessa�y approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, 

difficulties or doubts that may a�ise in this regard”

By Order of the Board For Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/-
Vipul Prakash 

Managing Director
DIN NO: 01334649

Address : 204/1, Neb Valley 
Sainik Fa�ms, Neb Sarai, 

New Delhi-110068

Dated :  29/08/2024

Notes:

1. Minist�y of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25 

September 2023 read with the circulars issued earlier on the subject (collectively refe�red to 

as 'MCA Circulars') and SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/0164 dated 06 

October 2023 read with the circulars issued earlier on the subject (collectively refe�red to as 

“SEBI Circulars”), have pe�mitted holding Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC/ OAVM, 

without physical presence of the Members at a common venue.

 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the provisions of the Act and the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the 17th AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM herein after 

called as “e-AGM”. In view of the same, the registered office of the Company shall be deemed 

to be the venue of the AGM.
 
 The Company has appointed KFin Technologies Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents, to 

provide Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) facility for the 17th 

Annual General Meeting and the attendant enablers for conducting of the e-AGM.

 The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Repo�t for FY24 is being sent by electronic mode to 

those members whose e-mail  address  is  registered with  the Company/Deposito�ies, unless a 

member has requested a physical copy of the same. Members may note that the Notice of 

AGM and Annual Repo�t for FY24 will also be available on the Company's website 

www.dienstentech.com,  website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited (NSE) at www.nseindia.com, respectively and on the website of KFin 

Technologies Limited at the website address https://evoting.kfintech.com. 

2. Since the AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, a route map to the venue is not required and 

therefore, the same is not annexed to this Notice.

3. Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of 

quo�um under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
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5. Appointment of Proxy and Attendance Slip: Section 105 of the Act read with Rule 19 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 provides for appointment of proxy 

to attend and vote at a general meeting on behalf of the member who is not able to physically 

attend the AGM. Since the 17th AGM is being held through VC/OAVM and in accordance with 

the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, 

the facility of appointment of proxy would not be available to the Members for attending the 

17th AGM and therefore proxy fo�m and attendance slip are not annexed to this Notice.

6. Corporate shareholders/institutional shareholders intending to send their autho�ised 

representative(s) to attend and vote at the 17th AGM are requested to send from their 

registered e-mail address, scan copy of the relevant Board Resolution/ Autho�ity Letter, etc. 

autho�izing their representative(s) to vote, to the Sc�utinizer on his e-mail ID at 

acska�msawhey@gmail.com  with a copy marked to sonia.vaid@jkdtl.com.

7. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses, bank account details and 

mobile number are requested to register the same with their Deposito�y Pa�ticipants (“DP”) 

since the shares are held by them in electronic Fo�m.

8. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secreta�ial Standard on General Meetings issued 

by the Institute of Company Secreta�ies of India, in respect of Director seeking re-

appointment at this AGM are also annexed to this Notice.

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and �ules made thereunder, there are no unclaimed 

dividend amounts pending for transfer.

10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
th14  September 2024 to 20 September 2024 (both days inclusive).

11. Investor G�ievance Po�tal maintained by Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA).

 Members are hereby notified that our RTA, KFin Technologies Limited, based on the SEBI 

Circular (SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/72) dated June 08, 2023, havecreated 

an online application which can be accessed at https://�is.kfintech.com/default.aspx > 

Investor Se�vices > Investor Suppo�t.

 Members are required to register / signup, using the Name, PAN, Mobile and email ID. Post 

registration, user can login via OTP and execute activities like, raising Se�vice Request, Que�y, 

Complaints, check for status, KYC details, Dividend, Interest, Redemptions, eMeeting and 

eVoting Details.

 Quick link to access the signup page: https://kp�ism.kfintech.com/signup

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE E-AGM THROUGH VIDEO 

CONFERENCE / OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MODE:

i. Attending the e-AGM: Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM or 

view the live webcast of AGM at https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using their remote 
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e-voting login credentials and selecting the 'Event' for Company's AGM. Members who 

do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and 

Password may ret�ieve the same by following the remote e-voting inst�uctions 

mentioned in the Notice. Fu�ther, Members can also use the OTP based login for logging 

into the e-voting system.

ii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops with Google Chrome for 

better expe�ience.

iii. Fu�ther Members will be required to allow Camera, if any, and hence use the Inte�net with 

a good speed to avoid any disturbance du�ing the meeting.

iv. Please note that Pa�ticipants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may expe�ience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi- Fi 

or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be open 15 minutes before the time 

scheduled for the AGM.

vi. Those Members who register themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express 

views/ask questions du�ing the AGM. The Company rese�ves the �ight to rest�ict the 

number of speakers and time for each speaker depending upon the availability of time 

for the AGM.

vii. Submission of Questions/que�ies p�ior to e-AGM:

 Members desi�ing any additional info�mation with regard to Accounts/ Annual Repo�ts or 

has any question or que�y are requested to w�ite to the Company Secreta�y on the 

Company's investor email-id i.e., sonia.vaid@jkdtl.com at least 2 days before the date of 

the e-AGM, so as to enable the Management to keep the info�mation ready. Please note 

that, membe�'s questions will be answered only if they continue to hold the shares as of 

cut-off date.

 Alte�natively, shareholders holding shares as on cut-off date may also visit 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/ and click on the tab “Post Your Que�ies Here” to post their 

que�ies/ views/questions in the window provided, by mentioning their name,demat 

account number/folio number, email ID, mobile number. The window shall be activated 

du�ing the remote e-voting pe�iod and shall be closed 24 hours before the time fixed for 

the e-AGM.

viii. Speaker Registration before e-AGM: Shareholders who wish to register as speakers at the 

AGM are requested to visit https://emeetings.kfintech.com register themselves between 

24 September, 2024 (10:00 Hours IST) and 25 September, 2024 (17:00 Hours IST).

ix. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be available for 1000 members on first 

come first se�ved basis. However, the pa�ticipation of members holding 2% or more 

shares, promoters, Institutional Investors, directors, key manage�ial personnel, 

chairpersons of Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination, 
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Remuneration and compensation Committee and Auditors are not rest�icted on first 

come first se�ve basis.

x. Members who need technical assistance before or du�ing the AGM, can contact 

KFintech at https://evoting.kfintech.com/ .

xi. Corporate members intending to send their autho�ised representatives to attend the 

Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) pursuant to the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 

requested to send a ce�tified copy of the relevant Board Resolution to the Company.

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING:
 
 Procedure for remote e-voting:

i. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 

read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in te�ms of 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09 December 2020 in 

relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed Entities, the Members are provided with 

the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e- Voting se�vices provided by 

KFintech, on all the resolutions set fo�th in this Notice. The inst�uctions for e-Voting are 

given herein below.

ii. However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09 

December 2020 on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process 

has been enabled to all the individual demat account holders, by way of single login 

credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Deposito�ies / DPs in order to 

increase the efficiency of the voting process.

iii. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 

register again with the e-Voting se�vice provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating 

seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of pa�ticipating in e-Voting 

process. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with 

their DPs to access e-Voting facility.

iv. The remote e-Voting pe�iod commences from 10.00 Hours (IST) on 24 September 2024 

to 17.00 Hours (IST) on 26 September 2024.

v. The voting �ights of Members shall be in propo�tion to their shares in the paid-up equity 

share capital of the Company as on 20 September 2024, the cut-off date.

vi. Any person holding shares in demat/physical fo�m and non-individual shareholders, who 

acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending 

of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and 

password by sending a request at evoting@Kfintech.com.

 However, if he / she is already registered with KFintech for remote e-Voting then he/she 

can use his / her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.
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vii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode and who acquires 

shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 

Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below 

under “Login method for remote e-Voting and joining vi�tual meeting for Individual 

shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode.”

viii. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained 

herein below:

 Step 1: Access to Deposito�ies e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode.

 Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 

physical and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

 Step 3: Access to join vi�tual meetings(e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system to 

pa�ticipate e-AGM and vote at the AGM.

 Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

 Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding secu�ities in demat 

mode.

 Type of shareholders Login Method

 Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode with NSDL

 1. User already registered for IDeAS facility:

 I. Visit URL: https://ese�vices.nsdl.com/

 II. Click on the “Beneficial Owne�” icon under “Login” under 'IDeAS' section.

 III. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication, 

click on “Access to e-Voting”

 IV. Click on company name or e-Voting se�vice provider and you will be re-directed to 

e-Voting se�vice provider website for casting the vote du�ing the remote e-Voting 

pe�iod.

 2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Se�vices

  I. To register click on link: https://ese�vices.nsdl.com/

  II. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 

https://ese�vices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

  III. Proceed with completing the required fields.

  IV. Follow steps given in point no.1
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 3. Alte�natively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL

  I. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

  II. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Membe�' section.

  III. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen digit 

demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Ve�ification Code 

as shown on the screen.

  IV. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to select the name of the 

Company and the e-Voting Se�vice Provider name, i.e., KFintech.

  V. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting page for 

casting your vote du�ing the remote e-Voting pe�iod.

 Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode with CDSL

 1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest

  I. Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login  or  
   URL: www.cdslindia.com 

  II. Click on New System My easi

  III. Login with your registered user id and password.

  IV. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e., KFintech 

e-Voting po�tal.

  V. Click on e-Voting se�vice provider name to cast your vote.

 2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest

  I. Option to register is available   at   
   https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration

  II. Proceed with completing the required fields.
 
  III. Follow the steps given in point 1

 3. Alte�natively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL
 
  I. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 

  II. Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.

  III. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the demat Account.

  IV. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP, 

i.e., KFintech where the e- Voting is in progress.
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 Individual Shareholder login through their demat accounts / Website of Deposito�y 

Pa�ticipant

 I. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your DP 

registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility.

 II. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Deposito�y site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

 III. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting se�vice provider – KFintech 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting your vote du�ing 

the remote e-Voting pe�iod without any fu�ther authentication.

  Impo�tant note: Members who are unable to ret�ieve User ID / Password are advised to 

use Forgot user ID and Forgot Password option available at respective websites.

  Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Deposito�y i.e., NSDL and CDSL.Login type Helpdesk 

details

  Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing 

any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

  Individual Shareholders holding secu�ities in demat mode with CDSL Members facing 

any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

 Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

 Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

secu�ities in demat mode and shareholders holding secu�ities in physical mode.

 Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Deposito�y Pa�ticipants (s), will 

receive an email from KFintech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), 

USER ID and password. They will have to follow the following process:

 i. Launch inte�net browser by typing the URL: https://emeetings.kfintech.com/

 ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID 

will be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) xxxx, followed by folio number. In case of Demat 

account, User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are already registered 

with KFintech for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting 

the vote.

 iii. After ente�ing these details approp�iately, click on “LOGIN”.

 iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandato�ily 

change your password. The new password shall comp�ise of minimum 8 characters with 
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at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one nume�ic value (0-9) and a 

special character (@,#,$, etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your password 

and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may 

also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to ret�ieve your password in case 

you forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any 

other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 v. You need to login again with the new credentials.

 vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVENT” i.e., 'Diensten Tech 

Limited -

  Annual General Meeting” and click on “Submit”

 vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) 

as on the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alte�natively, you may pa�tially enter any 

number in “FOR” and pa�tially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/ AGAINST” taken 

together shall not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may 

also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicateeither “FOR” or 

“AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under 

either head.

 viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process 

separately for each folio/ demat accounts.

 ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to 

cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

 x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an approp�iate option and click on “Submit”.

 xi. A confi�mation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confi�m else “CANCEL” to modify. 

Once you have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

Du�ing the voting pe�iod, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on 

the Resolution(s).

 xii. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also 

required to send scanned ce�tified t�ue copy (PDF Fo�mat) of the Board 

Resolution/Autho�ity Letter etc., autho�izing its representative to attend the AGM 

through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to cast its vote through remote e-voting. Together 

with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly autho�ised representative(s), to the 

Sc�utinizer at email id acska�msawhney@gmail.com with a copy marked to  

evoting@kfintech.com . The scanned image of the above-mentioned documents should 

be in the naming fo�mat “Diensten Tech Limited”

 Details on Step 3 are mentioned below:

 Inst�uctions for all the shareholders, including Individual, other than Individual and Physical, 

for attending the AGM of the Company through VC/ OAVM and e-Voting du�ing the meeting.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2421

i. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM platfo�m 

p r o v i d e d  b y  K F i n t e c h .  M e m b e r s  m a y  a c c e s s  t h e  s a m e  a t 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using the e-voting login credentials provided in the 

email received from the Company/KFintech. After logging in, click on the Video 

Conference tab and select the EVENT of the Company. Click on the video symbol and 

accept the meeting etiquettes to join the meeting. Please note that the members who do 

not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 

Password may ret�ieve the same by following the remote e-Voting inst�uctions 

mentioned above.

ii. Facility for joining AGM though VC/ OAVM shall open at least 15 minutes before the 

commencement of the Meeting.

iii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/ Desktops with Google 

Chrome (prefe�red browser), Safa�i, Inte�net Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla Firefox 

22.

iv. Members will be required to grant access to the webcam to enable VC / OAVM. Fu�ther, 

Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may expe�ience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation intheir respective 

network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi- Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 

any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of 

proceedings of the AGM, Members are encouraged to express their views / send their 

que�ies in advance mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number and 

email id.

vi. The Members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be eligible to 

cast their vote through e-voting system available du�ing the AGM. E-voting du�ing the 

AGM is integrated with the VC / OAVM platfo�m. The Members may click on the voting 

icon displayed on the screen to cast their votes.

vii. A Member can opt for only a single mode of voting i.e., through Remote e-voting or voting 

at the AGM. If a Member cast votes by both modes, then voting done through Remote e-

voting shall prevail and vote at the AGM shall be treated as invalid.

viii. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be available for at least 1000 

members on first come first se�ved basis.

ix. Institutional Members are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through VC / 

OAVM.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

I. Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak du�ing the meeting may register 

themselves as speakers for the AGM to express their v iews. They can visit 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ and login through the user id and password provided in the 

mail received from Kfintech. On successful login, select 'Speaker Registration' which will be 
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open from 24 September, 2024 (09.00 Hours IST) to 24 September, 2024 (17.00 Hours IST). 

Members shall be provided a 'queue numbe�' before the meeting. The Company rese�ves the 

�ight to rest�ict the speakers at the AGM to only those Members who have registered 

themselves, depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

II. Post your Question: The Members who wish to post their questions p�ior to the meeting can do 

the same by visiting https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ . Please login through the user id and 

password provided in the mail received from Kfintech. On successful login, select 'Post Your 

Question' option which will be open from 20 September, 2024 (09.00 Hours IST) to 24  

September, 2024 (17.00 Hours IST).

III. In case of any que�y and/or g�ievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, Members may 

refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at 

the download section of https://evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact 

evoting@kfintech.com/ einward.�is@kfintech.com or call KFintech's toll free No. 1-800-309-

4001 for any fu�ther cla�ifications.

IV. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as 

on 20 September 2024 (End of Day), being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the 

Resolutions set fo�th in this Notice. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date 

should treat this Notice for info�mation purposes only. Once the voteon a resolution(s) is cast 

by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on 

or before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the 

manner as mentioned below:

 If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID Client 

ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/, the member may click “Forgot 

Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID, Client ID and PAN to generate a password.

 i. Members who may require any technical assistance or suppo�t before or du�ing the AGM 

are requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or w�ite to them 

at evoting@kfintech.com/ einward.�is@kfintech.com.

VI. The results of the electronic voting shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges after the AGM. 

The results along with the Sc�utinize�'s Repo�t, shall also be placed on the website of the 

Company.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

1. The Company's equity shares are Listed at (i) National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 

Exchange Plaza, Floor 5, Plot No. C/1, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India and 

the Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchanges for the year 2024-

2025.

2. Members are requested to send all communication relating to shares to the Company's 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at KFIN Technologies Limited (Unit: Diensten Tech 

Limited), Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial Dist�ict, Nanakramguda, 

Hyderabad - 500032, Telangana State, India.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2423

3. Register of Directors and Key Manage�ial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the �ules made thereunder, and Register of 

Contracts maintained under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 and the �ules made 

thereunder are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

(i) Members holding shares either in demat or physical mode who are in receipt of Notice, may 

cast their votes through e-voting.

(ii) Members opting for e-voting, for which the USER ID and initial password are provided in a 

separate sheet. Please follow steps under heading 'INSTRUCTIONS FOR E- VOTING' above to 

vote through e-voting platfo�m.

(iii) The e-voting pe�iod commences from 09.00 A.M. (IST) on 24 September 2024 to5.00 P.M. 

(IST) on 26 September 2024. Du�ing this pe�iod, the members of the Company, holding shares 

in demat, as on the cut-off date of 20 September 2024 may cast their vote electronically. Once 

the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently.

(iv) The Company has appointed M/s. Ka�m Sawhney & Associates, Company Secreta�ies 

represented by Mr. Ka�m Sawhney, Practicing Company Secreta�y (Membership No. A64986 

and CP No. 24726) as the Sc�utiniser to conduct the voting process (e-voting and poll) in a fair 

and transparent manner.

(v) The Sc�utinizer shall, within a pe�iod not exceeding 2 working days from the conclusion of the 

Annual General Meeting unlock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses, not in 

the employment of the Company and make a Sc�utinize�'s Repo�t containing the details with 

respect to votes cast in favour, against, neutral/ abstained, shall submit the Repo�t to the 

Chai�man of the Company.

(vi) Subject to the receipt of sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed at the 

17th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on F�iday, 27 September 

2024, the results declared along with the Sc�utinize�'s Repo�t shall be placed on the 

Company's website https://www.dienstentech.com/ and on the website of KFintech, 

https://evoting.kfintech.com/, within 2 working days of conclusion of the Annual General 

Meeting.



24ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The following Explanato�y Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”), sets out all mate�ial facts relating to the business mentioned at Item Nos.3 of the 
thaccompanying Notice dated: 29  August, 2024:

Item No.3

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND ALTERATION OF CAPITAL 

CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following statement sets out all mate�ial facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 

accompanying Notice:

In order to broad base the Capital St�ucture and to meet funding requirements of the Company and 

to enable the Company to issue fu�ther shares in future after passing of six months from the date of 

listing on National Stock Exchange, it is proposed to increase the Autho�ised Share Capital of the 

Company from Rs. 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crore) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) shares of 

Rs. 10 each to Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crore and Fifty lacs) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five 

Crore) shares of Rs. 10 each ranking pa�i passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the 

Company.

As a consequence of increase of Autho�ised Share Capital of the Company, the existing Autho�ised 

Share Capital Clause in Memorandum of Association of the Company be altered accordingly. The 

proposed increase of Autho�ised Share Capital requires the approval of members in general 

meeting u/s 13 and 61 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The new set of Memorandum of Association is available for inspection at the Registered Office of 

the Company on any working day du�ing business hours. The Board of Directors recommends the 

above special resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors or any key manage�ial personnel or any relative of any of the Directors of the 

Company or the relatives of any key manage�ial personnel except to the extent of their shareholding 

are, in anyway, conce�ned or interested in the above resolution.

By Order of the Board 
For Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/-
Vipul Prakash

� Managing Director
DIN NO: 01334649

Address : 204/1, Neb Valley 
Sainik Fa�ms, Neb Sarai, 

New Delhi-110068

Place: New Delhi
Dated:29/08/2024�
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Members,

thYour Board of Directors hereby submits the 17  (Seventeenth) Annual Repo�t on the Business and 

Operations of your Company (“the Company” or “Diensten Tech Limited”), along with the Audited 

Financial Statements and the Audito�'s Repo�t thereon, for the financial year (“FY”) ended March 
st

31 , 2024. Fu�ther, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 the Company has made all the requisite 

disclosures in this Board Repo�t with the objective of accountability and transparency in its 

operations and to make you aware about its pe�fo�mance and future perspective.

In the previous financial years, pa�ticularly in FY 2023-24, your Company demonstrated robust 

pe�fo�mance, marking significant milestones and achieving results.

This pe�iod was pivotal in laying down a solid foundation for future success, as we made substantial 

st�ides across key pe�fo�mance indicators.

Our success in FY 2023-24 can be att�ibuted to a combination of strategic initiatives, diligent 

execution, and a steadfast commitment to excellence.

Throughout this pe�iod, we not only achieved our tu�nover targets but also strengthened our 

position in the market. Moreover, we made strategic investments in technology, infrast�ucture, and 

talent, positioning ourselves for sustained growth and competitiveness in the indust�y.

Impo�tantly, the strong pe�fo�mance in FY 2023-24 has provided us with valuable insights and 

lessons that will guide our future endeavours. We have identified areas for improvement, 

implemented best practices, and refined our strategies to capitalize on emerging trends and 

oppo�tunities in the market.

As we move fo�ward, we are confident in our ability to build upon the momentum gained in FY 2023-

24 and achieve even greater success in the future. With a solid groundwork in place and a dedicated 

team d�iving our vision, we are poised to continue delive�ing value, innovation, and excellence to all 

our stakeholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the Company's financial pe�fo�mance on Standalone basis, for the year ended 

March 31, 2024, are summa�ized below:

Pa�ticulars Standalone
(Amount in INR Thousands)

For the year ended March31,

2024 2023

Revenue from Operations 409,659.33 375,268.56

Other Income 1,437.57 762.09

Total Income 411,096.90 376,030.65

Less: Employee Benefit Expenses 298,572.46 181,461.03
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Less: Depreciation and Amo�tization Expenses 8,779.36 11,662.76

Less: Finance Cost 11,772.98 1,907.50

Less: Other Expenses 125,706.63 178,760.9

Profit Before Tax (PBT) (33,734.55) 2,238.44

Less: Tax Expenses (10,029.69) 632.49

Profit After Tax (PAT) (23,704.86) 1,605.96

Du�ing the pe�iod under review, the Company's operating revenue from providing professional 

se�vices & Corporate Training Business du�ing the year under review amounted to INR 409,659.33 

thousands. This figure represents a substantial increase compared to the revenue generated in the 

previous financial year, which stood at INR 375,268.56 thousands.

Reasons for Loss in the pe�iod ended on March 31, 2024

Indust�y Slowdown and Client Onboarding Challenges: The IT and professional se�vices indust�y 

expe�ienced a global slowdown in the first half of FY 2023-24. Our c�itical clients halted the hi�ing of 

new employees, causing a significant decline in fresh onboarding oppo�tunities. This slowdown has 

significantly impacted our gross additions and put strain to manpower suppliers like us.

Strategic Operational Changes and Leadership Transition: Following a comprehensive review of our 

operations, DTL made strategic decisions to enhance efficiency and value. This included hi�ing key 

employees like Mr. Siva Prasad Nandu�i as our CEO. Additionally, we unde�went significant changes 

such as expanding our office space and transitioning to a stronger in-house team sta�ting from 

June, albeit at increased costs.

Increased Overheads and Future Investment Strategy: As a result of the aforementioned changes, 

our Selling, General & Administrative overheads (SGA) significantly rose, impacting our bottom line. 

Despite this, the company views these expenses as necessa�y investments that will yield benefits in 

the upcoming financial years, beginning FY 24-25.

The impressive revenue increase highlights the effectiveness of our business strategies, the quality 

of our offe�ings, and the strength of our user relationships.

Looking ahead, we remain committed to sustaining this positive momentum and d�iving continued 

growth in our professional se�vices & Corporate Training Business segment. We will continue to 

invest in IT staff Augmentation se�vices across va�ious indust�ies. The Company provides reliable 

staffing solutions on a contract basis that offer the ability to build client's staff strength without 

absorbing them full-time to fu�ther expand our market presence and deliver exceptional value to our 

stakeholders.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

In order to align with the strategic needs of the business, no dividends have been recommended for 

the year under review.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

The Company has not transfe�red any amount to the Rese�ves for the year ended March 31, 2024.
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STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The Company is in the business of providing professional se�vices & Corporate Training Business 

du�ing the year under review.

In the Professional Se�vices segment of the business, the Company provides IT staff Augmentation 

se�vices across va�ious IT based indust�ies. The Company provides reliable staffing solutions on a 

contract basis that offer the ability to build a client's staff strength without absorbing them full-time.
In the Corporate Training segment of the business, the Company focuses on info�mation 

technology, soft skills/behavioural and domain specific lea�ning solutions. In te�ms of broad 

catego�ization, the Company provides consulting, training, application suppo�t, and IT skills & 

Technology training.

Management is making all their best effo�ts to ensure profitability & growth of the Company.

The Company has demonstrated significant growth in its financial pe�fo�mance du�ing the repo�ting 

financial year. Our revenue has surged to INR INR 409,659.33 Thousands marking a substantial 

increase compared to the previous yea�'s revenue of INR 375,268.56 Thousands. This remarkable 

growth can be att�ibuted to va�ious factors including decrease demand for IT professionals has 

helped us to realize higher revenue per associate per month and improved the gross margin of the 

Company.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER AND LISTING OF SHARES AT STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company has planned to raise funds from the P�ima�y Market to shore up its Working Capital 

Requirements and General Corporate Purposes including Repayment of Outstanding BTA Dues, in 

this regard, the Company has proposed to raise the funds through Initial Public Offer (“IPO”) on the 

SME EMERGE Platfo�m of National Stock Exchange (NSE).Consequently, du�ing the year under 

review, the Company has received In-P�incipal approval from National Stock Exchange (NSE) and 

completed Initial Public Offe�ing (IPO) and allotment of 22,08,000 equity shares by respective 

applicants in va�ious catego�ies for the face value of Rs.10 each at secu�ities premium of Rs. 90/- per 

share. Pursuant to the IPO, the equity shares of the Company are listed on Emerge Platfo�m of SME-

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) with effect from July 03, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE 

END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There are no mate�ial changes affecting the affairs of the Company which occu�red between the 

end of the financial year on March 31, 2024, of the Company to which the Financial Statement 

relates and date of this repo�t.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The shareholders of the Company at AGM held on September 26th, 2022, appointed M/s. S.R. 

Dinodia & Co. LLP, Cha�tered Accountants, (Fi�m Registration No.001478N) who are subjected to 

peer review process of Institute of Cha�tered Accountant of India as the Statuto�y Auditors of the 

Company for five consecutive years till the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company.
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The Auditors repo�t for the financial year 2023-24 does not contain any qualification, rese�vation or 

adverse marks.

COMMENT ON AUDITORS REPORT

The comments made by S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP, Cha�tered Accountants, (Fi�m Registration 

No.001478N), Statuto�y Auditors, in their audit repo�t read with the notes fo�ming pa�t of the 

Financial Statements are self-explanato�y and as such do not require any cla�ification by the 

directors.

REPORTING OF FRAUD BY THE AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of the Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Statuto�y Auditors has not repo�ted any incident of 

fraud which are committed against the Company by officers or employees of the Company.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

M/s. Finexpe�t Consultants LLP, has been appointed as Inte�nal Auditor of the Company for FY 

2023-2024 in te�ms of the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensu�ing the orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and e�rors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company's Inte�nal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the 

size and complexity of its operations.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Renumeration of Manage�ial Personnel) Rules, 2014 inter-alia requires eve�y listed Company is 

required to annex with its Board's repo�t, a Secreta�ial Audit Repo�t in Fo�m No. MR-3 given by a 

Company Secreta�y in Practice.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s Prachi Bansal and Associates, Company 

Secreta�ies, to conduct the Secreta�ial Audit and his Repo�t on Company's Secreta�ial Audit is 

appended to this Repo�t as Annexure-1.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CHANGES IN THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

· Autho�ized Capital

stAs on 31  March 2024, the Autho�ized Share Capital of the Company is INR 10,00,00,000 

comp�ising 10,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each ranking pa�i-passu in all respect with the 

existing Equity shares of the Company.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2429

 Du�ing the year under review, there is no change in the Autho�ized Share Capital of your 

Company.

· Issued, Subsc�ibed and Paid-up Capital

 As on March 31, 2024, the issued, subsc�ibed and paid-up equity share capital stands at INR 

6,05,26,460 comp�ising 60,52,646 Equity shares of INR 10 each ranking pa�i-passu in all 

respect with the existing equity shares of the Company.

 Du�ing the year under review, your Company has not issued and allotted Shares.

 The Company has only one class of equity shares with a face value of INR 10 each, ranking 

pa�i-passu.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

Du�ing the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no change in the nature of Company's business.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATES

Your company does not have any unlisted/listed subsidia�y company, Joint Venture or any 

Associate Company, pursuant to the provisions of the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014, 

therefore, no requirement of attachment of Fo�m AOC-1. Fu�ther no Company became or ceased to 

be subsidia�y, joint venture or associate company du�ing the year under review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Du�ing the year under review, the Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from the 

public/shareholders of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 73 and 76 of the Act 

read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Accordingly, no amount on account of p�incipal or interest on deposits from public/ shareholders of 

the Company was outstanding as on March 31, 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate gove�nance provisions as specified in regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of 

Sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Secu�ities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”) are not applicable to the Company. However, the Company consistently 

st�ives to ensure that the best corporate gove�nance practices are adopted and followed in its 

functioning and administration.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The MD&A Repo�t is presented in a separate Section and fo�ms an integral pa�t of this Annual Repo�t 

inter-alia cove�ing details of the overall indust�y st�ucture, economic development, pe�fo�mance 

and state of affairs of the Company Business, �isk management systems and other mate�ial 

developments du�ing the year under review.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

An active and info�med Board is a pre-requisite for strong and effective corporate gove�nance. The 

Board plays a c�ucial role in overseeing how the management safeguards the interests of all the 

stakeholders. The Board ensures that the Company has clear goals aligned to the shareholders' 

value and growth.

The Board provides strategic guidance and direction to the Company to help achieve its vision, 

long-te�m strategic objectives and to protect the interest of the stakeholders. As on March 31, 

2024, the Board was comp�ised of 07 (Seven) Directo�'s as mentioned in Table below:

Du�ing the year under review, below are the changes that occu�red in the composition of Directors 

du�ing the financial year 2023-2024.

In te�ms of Section 165 of the Act, none of the Director of the Company is a Director on the Board of 

more than twenty companies (including ten Public Limited companies).

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As on 31st March 2024, below were the Key Manage�ial Personnel of the Company

Below are the changes that occu�red in the Key Manage�ial Personnel of the Company du�ing the 

financial year 2023-2024.

S. No Name of Director DIN Designation

1 Mr. Vipul Prakash 01334649 Chai�man &  Managing Director

2 Mr. Abhishek Singhania 0087844 Director (Non-Executive)

3 Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 01595040 Director (Non-Executive)

4 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain 01014176 Director (Non-Executive)

5 Mr. Manoj Kumar 0087844 Director (Non-Executive)

6 Ms. Sunaina P�imlani Gera 07763740 Independent Director

7 Ms. Kanika Vaswani 09321205 Independent Director

Sr. Name�of Director DIN Designation Date of Change

1 Mr. Manoj Kumar 0087844 Additional Director (Non-Executive) 24/08/2024

2 Mr. Manoj Kumar 0087844 Director (Non- Executive) 20/09/2023

Sr. Name of Key Manage�ial Personnel Designation

1 Mr. Siva Prasad Nandu�i Chief Executive Officer

2 Mr. Sumant Kuthiala Chief Financial Officer

3 Ms. Vibha Wadhva Company Secreta�y & Compliance officer
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times in a year, with a maximum time gap of 120 days between any two 

meetings, to discuss and review the qua�terly results and other items of the agenda. The Board also 

meets and conducts additional meetings as and when required and thought fit. The dates for the 

Board Meetings are decided in advance and timely communicated to the Directors.

The directors of the Board and  Chief Financial Officer discuss the items to be included in the Board 

agenda.

The details of meetings of the Board, du�ing the FY 2023-24 has been provided and are given in 

Annexure -II hereto and fo�ms pa�t of this Board Repo�t.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sanjay Jain (DIN: 01014176) will be 

retired by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-

appointment.

thThe Board recommends his re-appointment for the approval of the members in the fo�thcoming 17  

Annual General Meeting.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they fulfill all the 

requirements as to qualify for their appointment as an Independent Director as per provisions of 

Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board confi�ms that the 

independent directors meet the c�ite�ia as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013.

Fu�ther, In the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors also possess the att�ibutes of Integ�ity, 

Expe�tise and expe�ience as required under Rule 8(5) (iiia) of Company (Account) Rules, 2014.
The Company has also received from them, a declaration of compliance that they have registered 

themselves with the databank of Independent Directors as maintained by Indian Institute of 

Corporate Affairs.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 a separate meeting of 
ththe Independent Directors of the Company was held on 29  March 2024 to discuss the agenda 

items as presc�ibed under the applicable laws. The said meeting was attended by all Independent 

Directors of the Company.

S.No. Name of Key Manage�ial
Personnel

Type of Change (Appointment/ 
Cessation/ Re-appointment)

Date of Change

1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Resigned as Chief Executive Officer 01/06/2023

2. Mr. Siva Prasad Nandu�i Appointed as Chief Executive Officer 10/06/2023
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COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in te�ms of the 

provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder the 

te�ms of reference of the Audit Committee has been approved by the Board of Directors.

As on March 31, 2024, the Audit Committee was comp�ised of 03 (Three) Directors as mentioned in 

table below:

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. The Company 

Secreta�y of the Company acts as the secreta�y to the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted under section 178 of the 

Companies Act 2013 for fo�mulization of the c�ite�ia for dete�mining qualifications, positive 

att�ibutes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration for the directors, key manage�ial personnel, and other employees.

As on March 31, 2024, the Nomination and Renumeration Committee was comp�ised of 03 (Three) 

Directors as mentioned in table below:

All the recommendations made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee were accepted by 

the Board. The Company Secreta�y of the Company acts as the secreta�y to the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee oversees the pe�fo�mance of the Registrar and Transfer 

Agents of the Company and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of 

investor se�vices.

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee, inter alia, oversees and reviews all matters connected 

with the investor se�vices in connection with applications received and shares allotted in the Initial 

S.No. Name of Director DIN Designation

1 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain 01014176 Chai�man Director

2 Ms. Sunaina P�imlani Gera 07763740 Non- Executive Independent Director

3 Ms. Kanika Vaswani 09321205 Non- Executive Independent Director

S.No. Name of Director DIN Designation

1 Mr. Kanika Vaswani 09321205 Chairperson cum Non- Executive 
Independent Director 

2 Ms. Sunaina P�imlani Gera 07763740 Non-Executive Independent Director

3 Mr. Vipul Prakash 01334649 Managing Director
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Public Offer, status of refund account, conversion of pa�tly paid sharesinto fully paid shares, 

remate�ialization and demate�ialization of shares and transfer of shares of the Company.

As on March 31, 2024, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee was comp�ised of 03 (Three) 

Directors as mentioned in table below:

BOARD EVALUATION:

The Companies Act, 2013 mandates that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation 

i.e., evaluation of the pe�fo�mance of: (i) the Board as a whole, (ii) individual directors (including 

independent directors and Chairperson) and (iii) va�ious Committees of the Board. The 

Pe�fo�mance evaluation was ca��ied out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on 

the “Annual Evaluation Framework” prepared by the Committee.

The framework includes the evaluation of directors on va�ious parameters such as:

• Board dynamics and relationships

• Info�mation flows

• Decision-making

• Relationship with stakeholders

• Company pe�fo�mance and strategy

• Tracking Board and committees' effectiveness

• Peer evaluation

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board has ca��ied out an 

evaluation of its own pe�fo�mance, Committees and pe�fo�mance of individual Directors du�ing the 

pe�iod under review. The aspects covered in the evaluation included the cont�ibution to and 

monito�ing of corporate gove�nance, practices, pa�ticipation in the long-te�m strategic planning 

and the fulfillment of Directors' obligations and fiducia�y responsibilities, including but not limited to, 

active pa�ticipation at the Board and Committee meetings. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 

states that the pe�fo�mance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board 

of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the 

Board Members and subsequent assessment by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

S.No. Name of Director DIN Designation

1 Mr. Kanika Vaswani 09321205
Chairperson cum Non-Executive 
Independent Director

2 Ms. Sunaina P�imlani Gera 07763740 Non-Executive Independent Director

3 Mr. Vipul Prakash 01334649 Managing Director
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The details of programs for familia�ization of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 

�ights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the indust�y in which the Company operates, 

business model of the Company and related matters are put up on the website of the Company.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / a�rangements / transactions entered by the Company du�ing the Financial Year 2023-

24 with related pa�ties were in the ordina�y course of business and on an a�m's length basis. Du�ing 

the year, the Company had not entered any contract / a�rangement / transaction with related pa�ties 

which could be considered mate�ial in accordance with the Policy of the Company on Mate�iality of 

Related Pa�ty Transactions,

However in Compliance of the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, the pa�ticulars of Contracts or a�rangements with related pa�ties 

refe�red to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are mentioned in Fo�m AOC-2 in Annexure- III

A Policy on Related Pa�ty Transactions, (as amended), specifying the manner and c�ite�ia of 

ente�ing said transactions, has been fo�mulated and the same is available on the website of the 

Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration 

of Directors, key manage�ial personnel and senior management of the company. This policy also 

lays down c�ite�ia for selection and appointment of Board Members and related matters are put up 

on the website of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at 

www.dienstentech.com 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy establishing vigil mechanism which is overseen 

by the Audit Committee for the genuine conce�ns expressed by the employees and the Directors. 

The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and 

Directors who express their conce�ns. The Company has also provided direct access to the 

Chai�man of the Audit Committee on repo�ting issues conce�ning the interests of employees and 

the Company. The policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company's website at 

www.dienstentech.com 

CREDIT RATING:

Your Company has not obtained Credit Rating from any Agency du�ing the year under Review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Info�mation pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conse�vation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 

exchange ea�nings and outgo.
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(A) Conse�vation of Energy

 Your Company has always been conscious of the need for conse�vation of energy and has 

been sensitive in making progress towards this front. The energy conse�vation measures have 

been implemented at all the areas of offices where it is feasible & special effo�ts are being put 

on unde�taking specific energy conse�vation methods given below thereby minimizing energy 

consumption & economize the energy bills.

 The Company has designed its facilities keeping in view the objective of minimum energy 

losses.

 Du�ing the year, several significant energy conse�vation initiatives have been unde�taken, 

including:

· Continual replacement of existing fixtures with energy-efficient LED lights.

· Replacement of outdated air conditioning chillers with energy-efficient alte�natives.

· Installation of automatic tube cleaning systems on chillers to enhance efficiency.

· Maximizing the use of natural light for illumination wherever feasible.

· Cultivating a work culture that emphasizes the impo�tance of switching off unnecessa�y 

lights.

 These measures underscore our proactive approach to energy conse�vation and signify our 

dedication to reducing our environmental footp�int while simultaneously optimizing 

operational efficiency.

(B) Technology absorption

 At Diensten Tech Limited, innovation isn't just a buzzword; it's ingrained in our DNA. We fi�mly 

believe in the power of innovation and its ability to transfo�m not only se�vices but also our 

entire business landscape. Throughout the FY 2023-24, we have passionately pursued 

innovation, applying it to eve�y facet of our operations.

 Moreover, our dedication to innovation extends beyond development in our se�vices. We 

continuously seek ways to enhance our quality standards, ensu�ing that each se�vice that 

bears our name exceeds expectations. This relentless pursuit of excellence d�ives us to 

constantly refine and improve our processes, making them more efficient, streamlined, and 

effective.

 In essence, innovation is not just a goal for us; it's a mindset that pe�meates eve�y aspect of 

our organization. By embracing innovation wholehea�tedly, we position ourselves at the 

forefront of our indust�y, ready to tackle challenges, seize oppo�tunities, and shape the future 

of our business.



36ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

 Benefits de�ived as a result of the above effo�ts:

 As a result of the above, the following benefits have been achieved:

 a) Better efficiency in operations

 b) Reduced dependence on exte�nal sources for technology

 c) Cost reduction

 d) Greater precision

(C) Foreign exchange Ea�nings and Outgo

 Info�mation about the foreign exchange ea�nings and outgo, as required to be given under 

Clause (m) of sub-section (3) of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as follows:

(In Thousands)

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The Expenditure incu�red on R&D is Nil. The future plan of action of your Company is to concentrate 

its focus on Research & Development activities associated with the Company's business.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 eve�y company having net 

wo�th of �upees five hundred crore or more, or tu�nover of �upees one thousand crore or more or a 

net profit of �upees five crore or more du�ing any financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee of the Board and shall fo�mulate a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. 

The company is not falling under the pu�view of said section du�ing the year.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As per Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief confi�m 

that:

(i) In the preparation of annual accounts for the FY ended on March 31, 2024, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed, along with proper explanation relating to mate�ial 

depa�tures.

Sl. No. Pa�ticulars For the
Financial Year ended 

on 31.03.2024

For the
Financial Year ended�

on 31.03.2023

(i) Expenditure in Foreign Cu�rency 
Purchase of Traded Goods

1,304.33 1,156.20

(ii) Ea�nings in Foreign Cu�rency 
Corporate Training se�vices

7,914.79 1,875.56
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(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and p�udent, so as to give a t�ue and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2024, and of the profit or loss of the 

Company for the FY ended on March 31, 2024.

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other i�regula�ities.

(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going conce�n basis and

(v) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

At your Company, we place a paramount emphasis on �isk management to safeguard our operations 

and ensure sustainable growth. We have established a robust system of �isk management that 

encompasses va�ious dimensions including operational, financial, strategic, and regulato�y �isks. 

This comprehensive approach enables us to identify potential �isks proactively and effectively 

mitigate them.

The responsibility for overseeing the entire �isk management process rests with the Board of 

Directors. They are actively involved in assessing and addressing �isks, aligning the �isk 

management framework with the Company's overarching objectives. This approach ensures that 

�isk management is integrated into our business strategy, enabling us to seize oppo�tunities while 

mitigating potential threats.

While the Board is confident that none of the �isks faced by the Company poses an existential threat, 

we remain vigilant, pa�ticularly in the areas relevant to our operations.

To mitigate �isks, we maintain a proactive stance, staying abreast of regulato�y developments and 

legal trends. Additionally, we p�io�itize compliance with applicable laws and regulations, investing in 

compliance measures to navigate potential legal or regulato�y challenges effectively.

Our proactive approach to �isk management underscores our commitment to maintaining the 

resilience and sustainability of our operations. By continuously monito�ing and addressing �isks, we 

st�ive to protect our stakeholders' interests and uphold the integ�ity of our business.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Du�ing the year under review, no amount was required to be transfe�red by the Company to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Retu�n in fo�m MGT-9 as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 was omitted 

pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act 2017 w.e.f. 5th March, 2021. Accordingly, the extract of 

Annual Retu�n in Fo�m MGT-9 is not attached with the Board Repo�t. The copy of Annual Retu�n can 

be accessed at Company's website at www.dienstentech.com.



38ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEE GIVEN AND SECURITIES 

PROVIDED UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There is no any instance of Loan Given, Investment Made, Guarantee Given and Secu�ities Provided 

under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 du�ing the pe�iod under review.

VARIOUS POLICIES/ CRITERIA/ PROGRAMS

In compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and �ules made there under, Listing Regulations and other 

applicable laws, the Board of Directors of your Company and its Committee/s at its respective 

meetings held on the 19th October, 2022, have duly reviewed and amended the following Policies/ 

C�ite�ia/Programs, and, the same are available on the website of the Company under the head 

policies & code of conduct (Diensten Tech limited) C�ite�ia and Policies)

1. Policy on Prese�vation of Documents.

2. Code of Conduct to regulate Monitor and Repo�t Insider Trading.

3. Board Diversity Policy.

4. Policy on Related Pa�ty Transactions.

5. Policy for dete�mining mate�ial Subsidia�y.

6. Dividend Policy and philosophy

7. C�ite�ia of making payment to Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

8. Mate�iality policy under SEBI ICDR Regulations.

9. Nomination and Renumeration policy.

10. Code of Conduct for Board of Directors (Including Independent Directors) and Senior 

Management personnel.

11. Whistle Blower Policy.

12. Policy for Familia�ization Program for Independent Directors.

13. Policy on mate�iality of events under SEBI LODR

14. POSH Policy.

15. Te�ms and conditions for appointment of independent Directors.

16. Mate�iality policy amended version 2

INTERNAL COMMITTEE (IC)

Diensten Tech Limited goal has always been to create an open and safe workplace for eve�y 

employee to feel empowered, i�respective of gender, sexual preferences, and other factors, and 

cont�ibute to the best of their abilities.

Towards this, the Company had set up and constituted the Inte�nal Committee (IC) pursuant to 

Section 4 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 in the year 2022 which completes nearly 2 years of enabling a positive and safe 

work environment for our employees. The Inte�nal Committee (IC) was constituted and the 

Company has a policy for prevention of sexual harassment at workplace of the Company.

Decisions made by the IC, a senior woman employee is the presiding officer over eve�y case. All the 

members of the IC are women. The role of the IC is not rest�icted to mere redressal of complaints but 

also encompasses prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment. The details of sexual 

harassment complaints that were filed, disposed of and pending du�ing the financial year are 

provided in this Board Repo�t.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for eve�y 

individual working in Diensten Tech Limited through va�ious inte�ventions, policy and practices. The 

Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from disc�imination 

and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has zero tolerance for sexual 

harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition & Redressed of sexual 

harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressed) Act 2013 & the Rules there under for prevention 

and Redressed of Complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for 

identification, repo�ting and prevention of sexual harassment.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to constitution of Inte�nal Committee (IC) 

under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. There is an IC duly constituted at the Company's Registered Office, which is responsible for 

redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment in accordance with the guidelines provided in 

the policy.

Fu�ther Company is committed to providing equal oppo�tunities without regard to their race, caste, 

sex, religion, color, nationality, disability etc. (pe�manent, tempora�y, contractual and trainees) as 

well as any women visiting the Company's premises or women se�vice providers are covered under 

this policy. All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain a work environment free 

from Sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological.

Du�ing the calendar year 2024, Diensten Tech Limited have the following details to repo�t:

S. No. Pa�ticulars Complaint Status

1 Number of complaints received in a year Nil

2 Number of complaints disposed off in a year Nil

3 stNumber of cases pending as on 31  March 2024 
for more than 90 days

Nil

4 Nature of action taken by the employer or Dist�ict
officer

Not Applicable

5 Whether the Company has framed the policy 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) 
Act and displayed the same.

Yes, The Company have a policy for 
prevention of sexual harassment at 
workplace and the same has  been  
displayed  on website of the Company 
at www.dienstentech.com 

6 Whether the Company has constituted the 
Inte�nal Committee as required under Section 4 of 
The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Yes, There is an Inte�nal Committee 
constituted at for handling and 
redressing complaints  on  sexual
harassment at workplace.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There is no significant mate�ial orders passed by the Regulators/ Cou�ts which would impact the 

going conce�n status of the Company and its future operation du�ing the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In te�ms of the provisions Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manage�ial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a 

statement showing the names and other pa�ticulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess 

of the limits as set out in the said �ules shall be provided on request of members on 

sonia.vaid@jkdtl.com.

In te�ms of the proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Repo�t is being sent to the Members 

of the Company excluding the aforesaid info�mation. The said info�mation is available for inspection 

by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company du�ing business hours on working days 

and Members interested in obtaining such info�mation may w�ite to the Company Secreta�y on Mail 

Id: and the same will be fu�nished on request.sonia.vaid@jkdtl.com 

HUMAN RESOURCE

The employees of the Company have been its key asset and p�ima�y cont�ibutors in d�iving the 

mission of the Company. We believe that sustainable growth can only be achieved by focusing on 

the well-being of its employees and empowe�ing them with knowledge and values.

The Company puts in best effo�ts to keep employees motivated by encouraging collaboration on 

issues relevant to employee, encouraging honest and genuine feedback and providing them the 

�ight oppo�tunities in order to develop leadership and to encourage them to work together to 

achieve the vision of the Company as one team.

Fu�ther, du�ing the financial year 2023-24 the Company has implemented new HR Policies for 

Employees:

1. Attendance and Leave Policy:

 This policy outlines guidelines regarding employee attendance, leave entitlements, 

procedures for requesting leave, eligibility, acc�ual and usage of leaves and consequences for 

non-compliance.

2. Workplace Conduct:

 The Workplace Conduct sets fo�th the ethical standards and behavioral expectations for all 

employees, ensu�ing a positive work environment.

3. Compensation and Benefits:

 This policy delineates Compensation and Benefits for Employees that will be provided in 

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations and based on the Job classification, 

assignment duration and client requirement.
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4. Health and Insurance:

 DTL Provides Group Mediclaim Covergae (GMC) to all full-time and their dependents as well 

as coverage under Group Personal Accident (GPA) and Workmen Compensation (WC) Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & SECRETARIAL STANDARDS & COMPLIANCE SYSTEM

Your Company st�ives to attain high standards of corporate gove�nance while interacting with all the 

stakeholders. The increasing diversity of the investing community render corporate gove�nance a 

vital issue for investors. Your Company believes that timely disclosures, transparent accounting 

policies and a strong and efficient Management go a long way in maintaining good corporate 

gove�nance, prese�ving shareholders t�ust and maximizing long-te�m corporate value.

In pursuit of corporate goals, your Company accords high impo�tance to transparency, 

accountability and integ�ity in its dealings. Our philosophy for Corporate Gove�nance is d�iven 

towards welfare of all the Stakeholders and the Board of Directors remainscommitted towards this 

end. In addition, your Company has duly followed all applicable Secreta�ial Standards issued by 

Institute of Company Secreta�ies of India from time to time.

In addition, your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secreta�ial Standards (SS) viz. SS-1 & SS-2 on 

Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS OR DIRECTOR'S RELATIVE

Du�ing the financial year under review, the Company has not bo�rowed any amount(s) from 

Directors or their relatives.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Your Board Members state that there being no transactions with respect to following items du�ing 

the year under review, no disclosure or repo�ting is required in respect of the same:

1. Deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Act and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential �ights as to dividend, voting or othe�wise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any 

scheme.

4. Buy-back of shares.

5. No settlements have been done with banks or financial institutions.
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bank�uptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) du�ing the financial year.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE 

TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

As the Company has not done any one-time settlement du�ing the year under review hence no 

disclosure is required.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Indust�ial relations remain peaceful and cordial du�ing the pe�iod under review. Your company 

regards its employees as its core strength and thus unde�takes requisite changes in va�ious policies 

from time to time for their welfare.

COST RECORD AND/OR COST AUDIT

The Maintenance of Cost Record and its Audit under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the 

Company du�ing the financial year.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/-      Sd/-
Mr. Vipul Prakash   Mr. Sanjay Jain
DIN: 01334649    DIN: 01014176
Managing Director   Director
Address : 204/1, Neb Valley     Address: 263, SFS Hauz Khas Appt, 
Sainik Fa�ms, Neb Sarai,   Hauz Khas New Delhi -110016 
New Delhi-110068

Place: New Delhi
Date:29/08/2024
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ANNEXURE-I TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and �ule No. 9 of the �Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Manage�ial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members, 
DIENSTEN TECH LIMITED
CIN: U74140DL2007PLC160160
REGISTERED OFFICE: - 
7th Floor, A-2, LSC, Masjid Moth, 
Greater Kailash-II, South Delhi, 
New Delhi, Delhi, India- 110048.

We repo�t that

We have conducted the Secreta�ial Audit of the compliance of applicable statuto�y provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by 'DIENSTEN TECH LIMITED' (hereinafter called as 'the 

Company'). Secreta�ial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statuto�y compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our ve�ification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, fo�ms and retu�ns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the info�mation provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and autho�ized representatives du�ing the conduct of secreta�ial audit, we 

hereby repo�t that in our opinion, the Company has du�ing the audit pe�iod cove�ing the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the statuto�y provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the repo�ting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, fo�ms and retu�ns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the 

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the �ules made thereunder;

(ii) The Secu�ities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the �ules made thereunder; [Not 

Applicable]

(iii) The Deposito�ies Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the �ules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Exte�nal 

Commercial Bo�rowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines presc�ibed under the Secu�ities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):
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(a) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;

(c) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(d) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(e) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014;

(f) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Secu�ities) 

Regulations, 2008;

(g) The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 

2009;

(i) *The Secu�ities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Secu�ities) Regulations, 2018.; 

- *Not applicable

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

(a) Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
(b) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
(c) Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948
(d) Mate�nity Benefit Act, 1961
(e) Payment Of Gratuity Act, 1972

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -

 (i) Secreta�ial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secreta�ies of India.

 (ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s); - Not 

Applicable

Du�ing the pe�iod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Standards and Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

Note: For clause (vi) above, the scope of our audit was limited to check the requisite licenses, 

pe�missions and registration under the specified Acts as provided by the management of the 

company. For the purpose of examining the adequacy of compliances with other applicable laws 

including indust�y/sector specific, under both Central and State legislations, reliance has been 

placed on the Compliance Ce�tificate issued by the Management, on a qua�terly basis, which were 
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placed before the Board meeting, based on the repo�ts received by the Company from va�ious sites, 

along with action taken/to be taken, wherever required, as pa�t of the Company's Compliance 

Management and Repo�ting System.

We fu�ther repo�t that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The composition of the Board of 

Directors du�ing the pe�iod under review were ca��ied out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act.

Adequate notice(s) has been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in case of sho�ter notice, 

compliance as required under the Act has been made by the Company and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining fu�ther info�mation and cla�ifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful pa�ticipation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings have been ca��ied out with requisite majo�ity of the members of the 

Board or unanimously. Fu�ther there is no case of views (if any) of the dissenting members as per 

the recordings in the minutes of the meetings of the Board.We fu�ther repo�t that there are 

adequate systems and process in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, �ules, regulations and 

guidelines.

We fu�ther repo�t that du�ing the audit pe�iod, the Company has obtained in-p�inciple approval from 

the National Stock Exchange for the Draft Red He��ing Prospectus, in accordance with the SEBI 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. No other specific event or action 

having a significant bea�ing on the Company's affairs was unde�taken in pursuance of the 

aforementioned laws, �ules, regulations, standards, and guidelines.

For PRACHI BANSAL & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secreta�ies)

 SD/-
CS Prachi Bansal (Prop�ietor)
(Practicing Company Secreta�y)
M. No. A43355 
CP No. 23670
Peer Review Ce�tificate No.: 3702/2023 
UDIN: A04335F001011454

Place: Fa�idabad, Ha�yana 
Date: 20/08/2024
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This Repo�t is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and fo�ms an 

integral pa�t of this repo�t.

Annexure-A
To,
The Members, 
DIENSTEN TECH LIMITED
CIN: U74140DL2007PLC160160
REGISTERED OFFICE: - 
7th Floor, A-2, LSC, Masjid Moth, 
Greater Kailash-II, South Delhi, 
New Delhi, Delhi, India- 110048.

Our repo�t of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secreta�ial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secreta�ial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were approp�iate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the co�rectness of the contents of the secreta�ial records. The ve�ification 

was done on test basis to ensure that co�rect facts are reflected in secreta�ial records. We 

believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not ve�ified the co�rectness and approp�iateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance 

of laws, �ules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, �ules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the ve�ification 

of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secreta�ial Audit repo�t is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company.

For PRACHI BANSAL & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secreta�ies)

 SD/-
CS Prachi Bansal (Prop�ietor)
(Practicing Company Secreta�y)
M. No. A43355 
CP No. 23670
Peer Review Ce�tificate No.: 3702/2023 
UDIN: A04335F001011454

Place: Fa�idabad, Ha�yana 
Date: 20/08/2024
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ANNEXURE-II TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

DETAILS OF THE MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DIENSTEN TECH LIMITED ATTENDED 

BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERSON / THROUGH VIDEO-CONFERENCING FOR FY 2023-24

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING

No. of meetings: 9 (Nine) i.e.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Diensten Tech Limited
(Fo�merly known as JKT Consulting Limited)

Sd/-        Sd/-
Mr. Vipul Prakash    Mr. Sanjay Jain
DIN: 01334649     DIN: 01014176
Managing Director    Director
Address : 204/1, Neb Valley      Address: 263, SFS Hauz Khas Appt, 
Sainik Fa�ms, Neb Sarai,    Hauz Khas New Delhi -110016 
New Delhi-110068

Place: New Delhi
Date:29/08/2024

1 Ap�il 23, 2023

2 May 18, 2023

3 July 14, 2023

4 August 24, 2023

5 September 20,2023

6 December 21,2023

7 Janua�y 29,2024

8 Feb�ua�y 12, 2024

9 March 28, 2024
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ANNEXURE-III TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
(Pursuant to provision of Section 134 (3) (m) read with Rule 8 

of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Fo�m AOC – 2

Fo�m for disclosure of pa�ticulars of contracts/a�rangements entered into by the company with 
related pa�ties refe�red to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
ce�tain a�m's length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or a�rangements or transactions not at a�m's length basis 

There were no contracts or a�rangements or transactions entered into du�ing the year ended March 
31, 2024, which were not at a�m's length basis.

Details of mate�ial contracts or a�rangement or transactions at a�m's length basis

There were no mate�ial contracts or a�rangements or transactions entered into du�ing the year 
ended March 31, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Diensten Tech Limited
(Fo�merly known as JKT Consulting Limited)

Sd/-         Sd/-
Mr. Vipul Prakash    Mr. Sanjay Jain
DIN: 01334649     DIN: 01014176
Managing Director    Director
Address : 204/1, Neb Valley     Address: 263, SFS Hauz Khas Appt, 
Sainik Fa�ms, Neb Sarai,    Hauz Khas New Delhi -110016 
New Delhi-110068

Place: New Delhi
Date:29/08/2024

Name of 
related pa�ty

Nature of relationship Nature of 
transaction

Transaction Value 
(In Thousands)

Board 
Approval Date

Advance 
Amount (if any)

Jk Technosoft 
Limited

Enterp�ises in which KMP 
have Significant Influence

Sale of Se�vices/ 
Product

52,552.31

Jk Technosoft 
Limited

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Rent Paid 60.00

Jk Education 
Foundation

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Rent Paid 12.00

J.K. Cotton 
Limited

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Rent Paid 72.00

Jaykey 
Enterp�ises 
Ltd

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Rent Paid 666.40

WoW Softech 
Pvt. Ltd.

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Purchase of 
Se�vice/product

428.50

JK
Consultancy &�
se�vices 
P�ivateLimited

Enterp�ises in which KMP�
have Significant Influence

Sale of prope�ty 
plant & Equipment 
& Intangible 
Assets

7.00

Manoj Kumar Key Manage�ial Personnel Consultancy 
Se�vices

1200.00
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THE SURGE IN 
TECH GLOBALLY

Technology has had a profound 
impact on human life in the last 5 years.

By 2028, the Global IT Indust�y 
will grow at a CAGR of 7.37%.

Cloud Computing, Al, IoT, 
Data Analytics and Visualization

India and China
Two Emerging Markets that 
stand to benefit the maximum.
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INDIAN 

IT 

INDUSTRY 

Share in GDP

7.5%
Share in GDP

57%

Share in Indian 
Se�vices Expo�t

53% Growth in 
Expo�t Revenue

17.2%

•  India is one of the prefe�red destinations for Global Capability Centers, with over 1570 GCCs

•  The Indian IT indust�y employs a significant workforce of 5.4 million, making it a net hirer 

•  Indian SaaS companies expe�ienced a twofold increase in their share of global markets
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INDIA IS FAST BECOMING 
THE GCC HUB

1600 GCC's 
2023

1900 GCC's 
2025

of the USD 
46 billion

Of the 11.4%

42%

GCC market size in 

FY 2023, ER&D alone 

has a market size 

of USD 25.6 billion.

C AG R  o f  G C C 

market size, 42% 

of the GCCs were 

in the product 

hub state in FY22.

960+

GCCs work with a 
functional shared 
se�vices model. IT, 
HR and F&A are key 
functions d�iving 
workloads.

of the total talent 
added in the last 
two years was in 
ER&D which has 
been growing at a 
CAGR of 10.7%.
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OTHER 
HIGHLIGHTS

IT Manpower Outsourcing 

is an Annuity Business 

that has recu��ing revenues 

with clients lasting for 

more than few years

With AI coming into 

play skills will be 

changing more rapidly

Indian economy slated 

to grow at over 7% in

next 5 years. Companies 

are actively using technology

to improve efficiency.

The Macro India and IT staffing

In India IT staffing is 1-1.5% 

of the staff in US it is about 17%.

Indian IT indust�y is still 

growing and even in the 

cu�rent year has grown

IT Staffing is a high margin 

business with standard margins 

ranging between 20-35% 

and net margins at 10-12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT:

Global Economic Review

Global growth is projected at 3.1 percent in 2024 and 3.2 percent in 2025, with the 2024 forecast 0.2 

percentage point higher than that in the October 2023 World Economic Outlook (WEO) on account 

of greater-than-expected resilience in the United States and several large emerging market and 

developing economies, as well as fiscal suppo�t in China. The forecast for 2024–25 is, however, 

below the histo�ical (2000–19) average of 3.8 percent, with elevated central bank policy rates to 

fight inflation, a withdrawal of fiscal suppo�t amid high debt weighing on economic activity, and low 

underlying productivity growth. Inflation is falling faster than expected in most regions, in the midst 

of unwinding supply-side issues and rest�ictive moneta�y policy. Global headline inflation is 

expected to fall to 5.8 percent in 2024 and to 4.4 percent in 2025, with the 2025 forecast revised 

down.

World trade growth is projected at 3.3 percent in 2024 and 3.6 percent in 2025, below its histo�ical 

average growth rate of 4.9 percent. Rising trade disto�tions and geoeconomic fragmentation are 

expected to continue to weigh on the level of global trade. Count�ies imposed about 3,200 new 

rest�ictions on trade in 2022 and about 3,000 in 2023, up from about 1,100 in 2019, according to 

Global Trade Ale�t data.

Indian Economic Review

India's nominal gross domestic product (GDP) at cu�rent p�ices is estimated to be at Rs. 301.75 

t�illion (US$ 3.62 t�illion) in 2023-24. Additionally, the Nominal GDP at cu�rent p�ices in Q1 of 2023-

24 was Rs. 70.67 t�illion (US$ 848.92 billion), as against Rs. 65.42 t�illion (US$ 785.85 billion) in 

2022-23, estimating a growth of 8%. With 115 unico�ns valued at more than US$ 350 billion, as of 

Feb�ua�y 2023, India presently has the third-largest unico�n base in the world.

GNI per capita of India increased from approximately ₹117,000 (approximately US$1,463) in 2016 to 

approximately ₹148,500 (approximately US$1,856) by 2019, growing at a CAGR of approximately 

8%. The fast-growing middle-class population, fo�ming the majo�ity of the population, and shifting 

of the labor force from the ag�icultural sector to the se�vices sector are key factors leading to an 

increase in GNI in India. The COVID-19 pandemic-induced lockdowns resulted in a high 

unemployment rate and a drop in income levels, leading to a decrease in GNI per capita in 2020. 

However, GNI per capita witnessed a strong recove�y between 2020 and 2023, growing at a CAGR 

of approximately 13% to reach ₹208,000 (approximately US$2,600) in 2023.

Economic growth in India is fu�ther expected to be d�iven by increasing p�ivate final consumption 

expenditure (“PFCE”) in the next five years. As per the World Bank, India's PFCE was estimated to be 

approximately ₹171 t�illion (approximatelyUS$2.14 t�illion) in 2023, which is projected to become 

₹280-290 t�illion (approximately US$3.5-3.6 t�illion) by 2028.

Indian Technology Indust�y Ove�view - FY2023

While FY2022 was a year of milestones and resurgence-an outlier for the Indian technology 

indust�y, FY 2023 has been the year of continued revenue growth with a focus on strengthening 
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indust�y fundamentals and building on t�ust and competencies. The volatile global economic 

scena�io and impending recession continues to suppo�t the demand for technology adoption and 

digital acceleration. Consequently, technology has become a strategic imperative that is a c�itical 

component of business innovation and transfo�mation, as well as a source of improving operational 

and cost efficiencies.

In FY2023, India's technology indust�y revenue including hardware is estimated to cross $245 Bn 

(8.4% y-o-y growth), an addition of $19 Bn over last year. Expo�ts, at $194 Bn, are expected to grow 

at 9.4% in repo�ted cu�rency te�ms, and 11.4% in constant cu�rency te�ms. The domestic technology 

sector is expected to reach $51 Bn,growing at 4.9%y-o-y. In �upee te�ms, domestic tech revenues is 

expecting a 13% y-o-y growth on the back of continued investments by enterp�ise and the 

gove�nment. The indust�y continues to be a net hirer, adding 290K employees, taking the total 

employee base to 5.4 Mn (5.7% y-o-y growth), strengthening its position as the 'Digital Talent 

Nation' for the world.

India IT indust�y is poised to grow @ about 11% for the cu�rent FY and IT spend will be around USD 

140 Bn and growing at a consistent growth rate of 7%. The Cu�rent GCC market which is about 1700 

in India will grow to 2500 in the next few years. Indian IT indust�y cu�rently has about 5 to 5.5M 

employees with about approx. 1.5 Lakh IT contingent workforce and we expect this to grow to 8M 

and contingent IT workforce doubling in the coming years.
           
Tech Indust�y Segment Trends

Strategies Strengthening the Fundamentals

1.  IT se�vices is expected to grow at 8.3% in FY2023 compared to last year. The key d�ivers of 

growth include Application Mode�nization, Cloud Migration, Platfo�mization, and Cyber 

secu�ity.

2.  Business Process Management (BPM) is undergoing a drastic transfo�mation, growing at 

~8.7% in FY2023. Digital CX, data d�iven transfo�mation, as well the position of BPM indust�y 

as a key strategic pa�tner to the customer is d�iving growth.

3.  ER&D is expected to grow at a double-digit figure of 11.1% y-o-y backed by strong 

fundamentals and �ising demand for Indian ER&D se�vices. Key growth d�ivers include 

strategic long-te�m deals, widespread proliferation of digitalization and cloudification of 

enginee�ing activities.

4.  Software products, expected to grow at 7.8% y-o-y in FY2023, is drastically alte�ing the 

landscape by creating world class products from India which are scalable, thereby 

showcasing India's entrepreneu�ial process, and a fast developing diverse and inventive Deep 

Tech sta�t-up ecosystem.

5.  Indian eCommerce indust�y is expected to leapfrog achieving 40% y-o-y growth in FY2023, 

d�iven by newer business models, �ising demand from tier II/III cities, and extensive use of 

technology in retail through platfo�mization for customer engagement and expe�ience 

enhancement.
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6.  India's Domestic technology adoption d�iven by growing cloud adoption and deals focusing 

on digital transfo�mation in existing and niche ve�ticals. The Gove�nment is also playing a key 

role as an enabler of technology by building public platfo�ms, digital public infrast�ucture and 

other projects, making the'Digital India' initiative a reality.

7. India strengthens its position as a GCC hub in 2022 with not only expanding centres in te�ms of 

scale and value but growing number of new GCCs setting-up base in India for the first-time. 

Global + local market focus, location diversification, positioning as 'Research  and Innovation 

Hub' were some of the distinct highlights for the sector.

8.  Business and leadership strategies revisited to transfo�m existing models and unlock new 

value from emerging and niche oppo�tunities. Fi�ms are focusing on capability building 

through strategic acquisitions, pa�tnerships and robust deal pipelines.

9.  Re-Imagining the future of workplace and workforce Workplaces are witnessing a shift 

towards hyb�id working and satellite offices, following decentralised delive�y models and �ise 

of satellite offices across Tier II and Tier III cities.

10.  Strengthening the tech talent pipeline Digital skilling and emphasis on re-skilling and lea�ning 

and development are expected to emerge as the leading d�ivers to grow digital talent and 

retain key employees within the organizations.

11.  Emerging technology big bets and the India oppo�tunity 12 technology big bets (that include 

sensor tech, sma�t robots, autonomous d�iving, computer vision, deep lea�ning, autonomous 

analytics, AR/VR, sustainability tech, edge computing, dist�ibuted ledger, spacetech, 5g/6G) 

are areas where enterp�ise spend is expected to grow 2X higher than average. With 

investments in India for these sectors growing at a 31% CAGR, India is already home to a large 

number of innovative sta�t-ups in these areas, and hence well placed to benefit from the 

oppo�tunities.

 India's Value Proposition: A Strong Economy and a Diverse Tech Ecosystem

India holding the prestigious Presidency of G20 nations, has grown from being the tenth largest 

economy ten years ago to the fifth largest today. India has been the fastest growing major economy 

for the third year in a row—poised for fu�ther growth, d�iven strongly by, among other factors, a 

robust and diverse technology ecosystem. Diverse and inclusive new-age skilled talent pool with 

strong entrepreneu�ial mindset, people first innovation, responsible & ethical tech & gove�nance 

built on t�ust, commitment to Environmental, Social & Gove�nance (ESG) goals, & Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR), fo�m the co�nerstones of this vibrant ecosystem. Cost competitiveness and 

efficiencies, stable and t�usted Gove�nment consistently building a conducive business 

environment and infrast�ucture through refo�ms and policies, along with the largest and youngest 

working population and consumer market, makes the indust�y's foundation even stronger. India's 

inherent leadership skills have ensured Indian o�igin leaders occupy a seat at the table in global 

organizations, fronting global cha�ters across va�ious ve�ticals

Re-Imagining the Future of Work and Workforce

The post Covid world is witnessing a shift towards hyb�id working and satellite offices as employees 

who retu�ned to their hometowns are still thinking what to do next. Also, these models are 
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suppo�tive in getting new talent which is a major challenge for organisations these days. Another 

key strategy that companies are following to combat the talent challenge is fresher hi�ing, which is 

shaping up the new age workforce with�ising share of Gen Z, which account for nearly 20% of the 

technology indust�y workforce.

Rise of Hyb�id, the new reality in the new no�m

Du�ing the pandemic, the tech indust�y was forced to move towards remote working. This shift is 

shaping the future of work models in the new no�mal - that relies on hyb�id working and vi�tual 

delive�y.

Moreover, majo�ity of the companies in the tech indust�y are working in hyb�id mode and adopting 

va�ious spect�ums available in this new work model with the evolving times.

Global Staffing Solutions Ove�view:

Staffing Solutions Market is segmented into two broad catego�ies, such as:

Ø Tempora�y Staffing/ Flexi Staffing

• General Staffing: This includes white, blue and grey collared staffing focused on job 

profiles such as sales and marketing, delive�y of products, front-end personnel, 

supe�visors, telemarketing, customer se�vice, network operators, telecom tower 

maintenance executives, medical representatives, executives for content generation 

and �unning campaigns etc. across end user indust�ies such as E-commerce, Banking, 

Retail and Consumer, Logistics, Telecom, Manufactu�ing, Hospitality, Healthcare, 

Tou�ism, Ag�iculture etc.

• IT Staffing: This includes white-collar staffing focused on the needs of IT and ITeS 

indust�y. Job requirements met include software programmers and developers, web 

designers, web planners, program managers, development project manager, 

development leads, test engineers, cloud engineers, infrast�ucture suppo�t engineers, 

data warehouse maintenance personnel, hardware engineers for real time suppo�t for 

data se�vers, full stack developers, DevOps etc.

• Pe�manent Staffing  Search: Search includes CXO positions and board level executives 

with management and domain expe�tise.  Rec�uitment & Rec�uitment Process 

Outsourcing (RPO) Solutions: Pe�manent staffing of senior, middle and junior level 

positions and outsourcing of the rec�uitment process.

• Staffing Indust�y Analysts (SIA), a global advisor on staffing solutions, estimate the 

Global Staffing Solutions Market at USD 498 billion1 in 2019 and USD 443 billion in 2020. 

Of the total market, 91% is from the Tempora�y Staffing Solutions segment and the 

remaining 9% is from other se�vices such as Pe�manent Rec�uitment in 2020. The market 

recorded a CAGR of 5.2% from 2016 – 2019 and the COVID-19 impact on the total market 

is estimated at 11% degrowth in 2020.

• Growth in Staffing Solutions market has been d�iven by the increased acceptance by 

organizations which are gradually increasing their share of tempora�y or flexi staff in 
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their total workforce. As indust�y becomes familiar with the benefits associated with 

tempora�y staffing and regulato�y regime is rationalized, more expe�ienced staff may 

join the staffing segment.

Indian Staffing Solution Indust�y Analysis:

HR Solutions Market in India is segmented into Tempora�y Staffing, Pe�manent Staffing and other 

HR solutions such as Payroll, Time and Attendance and Rec�uitment Process Outsourcing. 

Tempora�y Staffing is the largest segment and is fu�ther divided into General Staffing, IT Staffing, 

and Professional Staffing.

The HR Solutions market size in FY2021 is estimated at INR 1,450.0 billion. The market witnessed 

strong growth in the past five years. The market grew by a CAGR of 13.1% between FY2016 – 

FY2020. COVID-19 pandemic impacted the market growth and resulted in a marginal 4.0% growth in 

FY2021.

India accounts for 4.3% of the Global Staffing Solutions market in 2020 in revenue te�ms. Though 

this value seems insignificant, in te�ms of volumes Indian market is the 6th largest in the world and 

accounts for 5.8% of the total global market and has the potential to grow exponentially in the long- 

te�m. As per the Indian Staffing Federation, the total tempora�y workers in India reached 3.3 million 

in 2018 from 2.1 million in 2014 recording a CAGR of 16.1%.

DISCUSSION UPON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE �w.r.t. �OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The company's overall operational pe�fo�mance du�ing the financial year 2023-2024; Total tu�nover 

for the financial year ended has Rs. 40.96 Cr. The Company has incu�red Net Loss of Rs. 3.37 Cr. On 

the other hand, the company's overall operational pe�fo�mance du�ing the financial year 2022- 

2023; Total tu�nover for the financial year ended has Rs. 37.52 Cr. The Company has incu�red the 

Profit before Tax of Rs. 0.22 Cr.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Oppo�tunities Threats

· DTL assists in secu�ing a qualified and 
skilled personnel due to the seve�ity of 
the skills sho�tage.

· Corporate Training Product of DTL 
Improved Operational Sophistication, Cost 
Optimization and efficiency.

· Technological Catastrophe
· Alte�native and Emerging fo�ms of staffing 

i.e. Direct Contracts.
· Economic Downtu�ns.
· Regulato�y Changes
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SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

We catego�ize our se�vices in these major business segments: (1) IT Professional Solution Se�vices, 

and (2) Corporate Trainings.

· IT Professional Solution Se�vices

 IT Professional Solutions Se�vices is our Company's flagship and p�ima�y se�vice. Under this 

segment, p�ima�ily we provide comprehensive IT professional resourcing, IT Consultancy and 

Software AMC. We provide the IT staff augmentation se�vices across va�ious indust�ies viz. 

Info�mation Technology se�vice, banking and financial se�vices, automotive and enginee�ing, 

telecom, healthcare, Retail and Ente�tainment. Our revenue from IT Professional Solution 

se�vices was 95% (approx.) for the pe�iod ended March 31, 2024. Any organization big or small 

are st�uggling to deal with ever changing increased gove�nment regulations and volatile 

market demands. When things are so unce�tain, organizations may not want to hire pe�manent 

employees on a full-time basis, recent COVID - 19 pandemic is ve�y recent proof of that. 

Business houses want the flexibility of an agile, on-demand workforce who is equipped to �un 

their business operations just the way they want them to. We provide reliable staffing 

solutions on contract basis that offer the ability to build our client's staff strength without 

absorbing them full time, assist overloaded employees du�ing c�itical times, and keep projects 

moving.

· Corporate Training Se�vices

 Under this segment of our se�vice po�tfolio, we provide technical as well as soft skills based 

training se�vices, where we focus on info�mation technology, soft skills/behavioral, domain 

specific lea�ning solutions that work for our client's business. These are some of the trainings 

we provide under Corporate Training Se�vice catego�y:

· ERP and Business Application Trainings

· Behavioral training, Induction/ Onboarding Training

· Domain Specific Training, Train and Deploy

· CSR Implementation programs

· Disaster and Safety Management trainings

· Lea�ning Solution and Education Tou�ism

DTL

IT Professional Solution Se�vices Corporate Training
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(1) ERP and Business Application Trainings: 

 Under this training, DTL offers standard courses (without SAP ce�tification) for SAP end-user 

and project teams. These are sho�t duration courses that help in the fulfillment of skill gaps 

identified and are p�ima�ily focused on the specific needs of the project teams or SAP users. 

Some of the examples of these trainings are SAP, Transpo�t management, Financial 

Management, Human capital management and Gove�nance, �isk & compliances.

(2) Behavioral training, Induction/ Onboarding Training: 

 Behavioral skills are a person's ability to interact effectively with co-workers and customers 

and are broadly applicable both in and outside the workplace. Soft skills training like etiquette, 

personal finance management, and communication that allow for personal and professional 

growth in employees. Some of the examples of these trainings are Personal Productivity, 

Customer Leadership Management & Negotiation Skills etc.

(3) Domain Specific Training, Train and Deploy: 

 Under this training, DTL offers standard courses to end user to upgrade their technical skills 

due to technology advancement. Some of the examples of this training include Devops, 

Tableau, Salesforce, Ce�tified Agile Se�vice manager etc.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Management has put in place effective Inte�nal Control Systems to provide reasonable assurance for:

· Safeguarding Assets and their usage.

· Maintenance of Proper Accounting Records and

· Adequacy and Reliability of the info�mation used for ca��ying on Business Operations. Key 

elements of the Inte�nal Control Systems are as follows:

· Existence of Autho�ity Manuals and pe�iodical updating of the same for all Functions.

· Existence of clearly defined organizational st�ucture and autho�ity.

· Existence of corporate policies for Financial Repo�ting and Accounting.

· Existence of Management info�mation system updated from time to time as may be required.

· Existence of Annual Budgets and Long-Te�m Business Plans.

· Existence of Inte�nal Audit System.

· Pe�iodical review of oppo�tunities and �isk factors depending on the Global / Domestic 

Scena�io and to unde�take measures as may be necessa�y.

 Inte�nal Audit Repo�ts are regularly circulated for pe�usal of SeniorManagement for 

approp�iate action as required.
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RISK AND CONCERN

Our business is subjected to va�ious �isks and unce�tainties, Our result of operations and financial 

conditions are affected by numerous factors including the following:

· Pe�fo�mance of Company's competitors;

· Significant developments in India's economic and fiscal policies;

· Failure to adapt to the changing needs of indust�y and in pa�ticular Agrochemical Sector may 

adversely affect our business and financial condition;

· Volatility in the Indian and global capital market;

HUMAN RESOURCE/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Company have a qualified and professional employee base of about more than 500 employees 

as of March 31, 2024. Our manpower is a p�udent mix of the expe�ienced and young people which 

gives us the dual advantage of stability and growth, execution of se�vices within time and quality. 

We believe human capital is one of the most valuable assets of our Company as their technical 

know-how and skill sets position us at a competitive advantage over our competitors in providing 

some of our se�vices.

Human Resources Development, in all its aspects like training in safety and social values is under 

constant focus of the management. Relations between the management & the employees at all 

levels remained healthy & cordial throughout the year. The Management and the employees are 

dedicated to achieve the corporate objectives and the targets set before the company.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK:

We are a next-generation IT consultancy se�vice provider that helps enterp�ises reimagine their 

businesses for the digital age. We provide end-to- end professional solutions to make large 

companies and organizations more competitive by combining in-depth knowledge of a wide range 

of business sectors and innovative technologies with a fully collaborative approach. We are a 

lifelong lea�ning pa�tner for enterp�ises, helping them build skills in emerging technologies at scale. 

Our Corporate Training division helps build innovative lea�ning modules for organizations in the 

workplace by st�uctu�ing a sma�ter workforce, suppo�ting changes and d�iving growth.

Our Company, with an expe�t panel reaches out to a wide range of IT suppo�t and consultancy 

se�vices related to IT Skilled Staffing Solutions, IT Training, Development and Capacity Building. Our 

trained employee base whom wehire, train and deploy on our client sites based on type of 

agreements with them we have a strong national presence.

The company is putting continuous effo�ts to attain fu�ther efficiencies. Fu�ther, the Company is 

confident that in spite of the challenges and competition in the indust�y it will pe�fo�m better in view 

of the strong fundamentals of the Company and hope to increase its tu�nover. The Company is 

expecting to enhance its presence globally to rationalize its significance by ente�ing into the new 

alliance.
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 

financial year) in Key Financial Ratios and any changes in Retu�n on Net Wo�th of the Company (on 

standalone basis) including explanations therefore are given in notes to the financial statements 

which fo�ms pa�t of this Annual Repo�t.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors Repo�t desc�ibing the 

Company's strengths, strategies, projections and estimates, are fo�ward-looking statements and 

progressive within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may va�y from 

those expressed or implied, depending upon economic conditions, Gove�nment Policies and other 

incidental factors. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the fo�ward-looking 

statements.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD, 
For DIENSTEN TECH LIMITED

PLACE: New Delhi�
DATE: 29/08/2024�

VIPUL PRAKASH
DIN: 01334649

MANAGING DIRECTOR
ADDRESS: 204/1, NEB VALLEY 

SAINIK FARMS, NEB SARAI, 
NEW DELHI-110068
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To 

The Members of 
Diensten Tech Limited 

Repo�t on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Diensten Tech Limited (“the 

Company”), which comp�ise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit 

and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summa�y of significant accounting policies and other explanato�y info�mation 

(hereinafter refe�red to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our info�mation and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the info�mation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

in the manner so required and give a t�ue and fair view in confo�mity with the Accounting p�inciples 

generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards presc�ibed under section 133 of the 

Act read with �ule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at March 31, 2024, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

fu�ther desc�ibed in the Audito�'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 

of our repo�t. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Cha�tered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there 

under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

approp�iate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Info�mation Other than the Financial Statements and Audito�'s Repo�t Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other info�mation. The other 

info�mation comp�ises the info�mation included in the Board's Repo�t but does not include the 

financial statements and our audito�'s repo�t thereon. The Board's Repo�t including Annexures to 

Board's Repo�t is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audito�'s repo�t.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other info�mation and we will not express 

any fo�m of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

info�mation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

info�mation is mate�ially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or othe�wise appears to be mate�ially misstated.
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When we read Board's Repo�t including Annexures to Board's Repo�t, if we conclude that there is a 

mate�ial misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

gove�nance

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gove�nance for the Financial 

Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a t�ue and fair view of the 

financial position, financial pe�fo�mance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting p�inciples generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with �ule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other i�regula�ities; selection and application of approp�iate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and p�udent; and design, 

implementation andmaintenance of adequate inte�nal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensu�ing the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a t�ue and fair view and are free 

from mate�ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or e�ror.

In prepa�ing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going conce�n, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

conce�n and using the going conce�n basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alte�native but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repo�ting 

process.

Audito�'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from mate�ial misstatement, whether due to fraud or e�ror, and to issue an audito�'s 

repo�t that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a mate�ial 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can a�ise from fraud or e�ror and are considered 

mate�ial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As pa�t of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the �isks of mate�ial misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or e�ror, design and pe�fo�m audit procedures responsive to those �isks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approp�iate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

�isk of not detecting a mate�ial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from e�ror, as fraud may involve collusion, forge�y, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the ove��ide of inte�nal control.
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• Obtain an understanding of inte�nal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are approp�iate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the approp�iateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the approp�iateness of management's use of the going conce�n basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mate�ial unce�tainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going conce�n. If we conclude that a mate�ial unce�tainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our audito�'s repo�t to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audito�'s repo�t. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going conce�n.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, st�ucture and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with gove�nance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in inte�nal control that we identify du�ing our audit.

We also provide those charged with gove�nance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.Repo�t on Other Legal and Regulato�y Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Audito�'s Repo�t) Order, 2020 (“the Orde�”), issued by the 

Central Gove�nment of India in te�ms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 

“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we repo�t that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the info�mation and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessa�y for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matter 

stated in paragraph below on repo�ting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules 2014.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 

with by this Repo�t are in agreement with the books of account.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the w�itten representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in te�ms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected 

therewith are as stated in paragraph 2 (h) (v) below on repo�ting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Repo�t in “Annexure B”.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito�'s Repo�t in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 

best of our info�mation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. On the basis of w�itten representations received from the management of the Company, 

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

financial statements- Refer Note No. 31 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-te�m contracts including de�ivative contracts for 

which there were any mate�ial foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transfe�red to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company.

 iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 36 to the accounts, no funds (which are mate�ial either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from bo�rowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 

the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Inte�media�ies”), with the understanding, whether recorded in w�iting or 

othe�wise, that the Inte�media�y shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficia�ies”) or provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia�ies

  b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 36 to the accounts, no funds (which are mate�ial either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any 

person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Pa�ties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in w�iting or othe�wise, that the Company shall, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pa�ty (“Ultimate Beneficia�ies”) 

or provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficia�ies; and



66ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

  c) Based on such audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and 

approp�iate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 

us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 

provided under (a) & (b) above, contain any mate�ial misstatement

v. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an 

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated since Ap�il 13, 2023 for 

all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Fu�ther, for the pe�iods where audit 

trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not come across any instance of 

audit trail feature being tampered with.

vi. Du�ing the year, the Company has not declared or paid any dividend

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' repo�t under Section 197(16):

 In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanation given to us, the Company has 

not paid or provided any manage�ial remuneration to any director du�ing the year.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants,
Fi�m's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

Sd/-
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLVE3579 
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Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors' Repo�t of even date on the financial statements of 

Diensten Tech Limited

The Annexure refe�red to in paragraph 1 under 'Repo�t on Other Legal and Regulato�y Requirements' 

section of Independent Auditors' Repo�t to the members of the Company on the financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we repo�t that:

i) In respect of Prope�ty, Plant & Equipment:

 a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa�ticulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa�ticulars of Intangible 

assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical ve�ification of its fixed assets by which 

fixed assets are ve�ified at regular inte�vals. In accordance with this program, all fixed 

assets were ve�ified du�ing the year and no mate�ial discrepancies were noticed on such 

ve�ification. In our opinion, such pe�iodicity of physical ve�ification is reasonable having 

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

c) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and records examined by us, 

the Company does not hold any immovable prope�ty. Accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

d) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and the records examined by 

us, the Company has not revalued its Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets 

or both du�ing the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not 

applicable.

e) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been 

initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami prope�ty under the 

Prohibition of Benami Prope�ty Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and �ules 

made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not 

applicable.

ii) a) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company does not have 

any invento�y. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not 

applicable.

 b) According to the records examined by us, du�ing the year, working capital limits in 

excess of five crore �upees, in aggregate, have been sanctioned to the Company by the 

bank on the basis of secu�ity of cu�rent assets. According to the info�mation and 

explanations given to us, the qua�terly statements filed by the Company with such bank 

are mate�ially in agreement with the books of account of the Company. The Company 

has not been sanctioned any working capital limits by any financial institution.

iii) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has neither made any 

investments nor provided any guarantee or secu�ity nor granted any loans or advances in the 
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nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, fi�ms, Limited Liability Pa�tnerships 

(LLPs) or any other pa�ties. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order 

are not applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, 

the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

v) In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits du�ing the year and 

had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 

of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Central Gove�nment has not 

specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in 

respect of business operations of Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the 

Order are not applicable.

vii) a)  The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statuto�y dues including 

Goods and Se�vice Tax, Income-tax, provident fund, cess and other mate�ial statuto�y 

dues, as applicable, to the approp�iate autho�ities. The statuto�y dues i.e. duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, employees state insurance are not applicable 

to the operations of the Company. Fu�ther, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a pe�iod of more than six months from the 

date they become payable.

 b)  According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect 

of statuto�y dues refe�red to in sub-clause (vii)(a) above that have not been deposited 

with the approp�iate autho�ities on account of any dispute, except as under:

viii) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, 

there are no unrecorded transactions that have been su�rendered or disclosed as income 

du�ing the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

ix) In respect of loans or other bo�rowings taken by the Company, according to the info�mation 

and explanations given to us and audit procedures pe�fo�med by us:

 a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other bo�rowings or in the 

payment of interest thereon to any lender du�ing the year.

S.
No.

Name�of�
the Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount in ` lakh 
(Net of deposit)

Pe�iod�to which 
amount relates

Fo�um�where 
dispute is pending

1. UP Trade Tax 
Depa�tment

Trade Tax 
Demand

260.87 2013-14 Additional 
Commissioner, UP 

Trade Tax
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 b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or gove�nment or any gove�nment autho�ity.

 c) The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of te�m loans du�ing the year for 

the purposes for which they were obtained.

 d) No funds raised on sho�t-te�m basis have been used for long-te�m purposes by the 

Company.

 e) The Company does not have any subsidia�y, associate or joint ventures. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order are not applicable.

 f) The Company has not raised loans du�ing the year on the pledge of secu�ities held in its 

associate companies. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order are not 

applicable.

x) In respect of moneys raised by the Company through issue of shares & debt inst�uments:

a) Du�ing the year, the Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or fu�ther 

public offer (including debt inst�uments) du�ing the year. Accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

b) Du�ing the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or p�ivate 

placement of shares or conve�tible debentures (fully, pa�tially or optionally conve�tible). 

Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xi) a)  Du�ing the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, ca��ied 

out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 

to the info�mation and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 

instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or repo�ted du�ing the year nor have we 

been info�med of such case by the Management.

 b) In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, no repo�t 

under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 

auditors in Fo�m ADT-4 as presc�ibed under �ule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 with the Central Gove�nment.

 c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints 

received by the Company du�ing the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the 

Order are not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, all transactions 

with the related pa�ties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, 

and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by 

the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv) In respect to inte�nal audit system in the Company:

 a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an inte�nal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

 b) We have considered the inte�nal audit repo�ts for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company, in dete�mining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv) In our opinion and according to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them 

covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are 

not applicable.

xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Rese�ve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a) to (c) of the 

order are not applicable.

 b) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, there are no core investment 

company (CIC) within the group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Rese�ve 

Bank) Direction, 2016). Accordingly, provision of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not 

applicable.

xvii) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, the Company has incu�red cash 

losses of INR 24,955.17 thousands in the cu�rent financial year whereas there are no cash 

losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statuto�y auditors of the Company du�ing the year. 

Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

xix) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other info�mation accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 

suppo�ting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any mate�ial unce�tainty exists as on the date of the audit repo�t that Company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a pe�iod of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We fu�ther state that our repo�ting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit repo�t and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a pe�iod of one year from the balance sheet date, 

will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) According to the info�mation and explanations given to us, provisions of Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the 

Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xx) (a) & (b) of the order are not applicable.
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xxi) The repo�ting under clause 3 (xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of financial 

statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment in respect of said clause has been 

included in the repo�t.
.
For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants,
Fi�m's Registration Number 001478N/N500005

Sd/-
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLVE3579

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 27/06/2024
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Repo�t of even date on the financial statement of 

Diensten Tech Limited 

Repo�t on the Inte�nal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Diensten 

Tech Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 March, 2024.

Management's Responsibility for Inte�nal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining inte�nal financial 

controls based on the inte�nal control with reference to financial statements c�ite�ia established by 

the Company conside�ing the essential components of inte�nal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Inte�nal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo�ting issued by the Institute of Cha�tered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate inte�nal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensu�ing the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and e�rors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

info�mation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's inte�nal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Inte�nal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo�ting (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be presc�ibed under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of inte�nal financial controls, 

both applicable to an audit of Inte�nal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 

Cha�tered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and pe�fo�m the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all mate�ial respects.

Our audit involves pe�fo�ming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

inte�nal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 

obtaining an understanding of inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

assessing the �isk that a mate�ial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of inte�nal control based on the assessed �isk. The procedures selected 

depend on the audito�'s judgment, including the assessment of the �isks of mate�ial misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or e�ror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approp�iate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company's inte�nal financial controls system with reference to financial 

statements.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2473

Meaning of Inte�nal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repo�ting and the preparation 

of financial statements for exte�nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

p�inciples. A company's inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 

those policies and procedures that (1) pe�tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessa�y to pe�mit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting p�inciples, 

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

autho�izations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unautho�ized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a mate�ial effect on the financial statements.Inherent 

Limitations of Inte�nal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements Because of the 

inherent limitations of inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management ove��ide of controls, mate�ial

misstatements due to e�ror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the inte�nal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future pe�iods 

are subject to the �isk that the inte�nal financial control with reference to financial statements may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may dete�iorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all mate�ial respects, an adequate inte�nal financial controls 

system with reference to financial statements and such inte�nal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the inte�nal control 

with reference to financial statements c�ite�ia established by the Company conside�ing the 

essential components of inte�nal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inte�nal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Repo�ting issued by the Institute of Cha�tered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants,
Fi�m's Registration Number 001478N/N500005

Sd/-
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLVE3579

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 27/06/2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

Pa�ticulars Notes
As  At

March 31, 2024
As  At

March 31, 2023

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
 Shareholders' funds   
 (a) Share capital   3 60,526.46 60,526.46
 (b) Rese�ve and surplus   4 (41,725.53) (18,020.67)
 
 Non- cu�rent liabilities   
 (a) Long-te�m bo�rowings   5 1,85,000.00 -
 (b) Other long te�m liabilities   6 - 2,586.43
 (c) Long te�m provisions   7 10,407.95 11,988.12
 
 Cu�rent liabilities   
 (a) Sho�t te�m bo�rowings   8 91,929.88 28,000.00
 (b) Trade payables   9  
  (a)  Total outstanding dues of micro 
   enterp�ises and small enterp�ises, and  752.24 249.08
  (b)  Total outstanding dues of creditors 
   other than micro enterp�ises and small enterp�ises  19,000.71 12,466.51
 (c) Other cu�rent liabilities   6 59,166.73 50,715.87
 (d) Sho�t te�m provisions   7 2,304.44 1,969.73
 
 TOTAL      3,87,362.88 1,50,481.53

II ASSETS   
 Non cu�rent assets   
 (a) Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment and 
  Intangible Assets:   
  (i)  Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment  10A 3,843.07 1,650.47
  (ii)  Intangible assets   10B 1,61,011.80 45,832.00
  (iii) Intangible assets under development 10C 1,851.79 -
 (b) Defe�red tax assets (net)   11 11,307.47 1,035.24
 (c) Long te�m loans and advances   12 56,902.19 -
 (d) Other non cu�rent assets   13 8,354.63 8,230.96
 
 Cu�rent assets   
 (a) Trade receivables   14 1,29,735.29 53,362.81
 (b) Cash and other bank balances   15 3,833.81 6,223.12
 (c) Sho�t te�m loans and advances   12 177.76 28,728.00
 (d) Other cu�rent assets   13 10,345.07 5,418.94

 TOTAL      3,87,362.88 1,50,481.53

 Significant Accounting Policies   1-2  

The Accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of the financial statements

As per our repo�t of even date

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants
Fi�m's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/- 
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27/06/2024 

Sd/- 
(Vipul Prakash) 
Managing Director 
(DIN:01334649)

Sd/- 
(Sanjay Kumar Jain) 
Director 
(DIN:01014176)

Sd/- 
(Siva Prasad Nandu�i)
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/- 
(Sumant Kuthiala)
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- 
(Vibha Wadhwa)
Company Secreta�y 
(ICSI Mem. No. 29381)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

Pa�ticulars
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024
Year Ended 

March 31, 2023

 Revenue 
I Revenue from operations   16 4,09,659.33 3,75,268.56
II   Other income   17 1,437.57 762.09
III   Total Income (I+II)    4,11,096.90 3,76,030.65

IV   Expenses
 (a) Purchase of Stock in trade  18 1,304.33 1,156.20
 (b) Employee benefit expenses  19 2,98,572.46 1,81,461.03
 (c) Finance costs   20 11,772.98 1,907.50
 (d) Depreciation and amo�tization expense 21 8,779.38 11,662.76
 (e) Other expenses   22 1,24,402.30 1,77,604.70
 Total expenses    4,44,831.45 3,73,792.20

V   Profit before tax (III-IV)    (33,734.55) 2,238.44

VI   Tax expenses
 (a) Cu�rent tax    - 1,268.82
 (b) Tax adjustment of earlier years   242.54 -
 (c) Defe�red tax    (10,272.24) (636.34)
        (10,029.69) 632.49
VII   Profit After Tax for the year    (23,704.86) 1,605.96

VIII Ea�nings per equity share:
 [Nominal value per share:  
 Rs 10 (March 31, 2023: `. 10)]   23  

 (a) Basic (amount in  `)    (3.92) 0.29
 (b) Diluted (amount in `)    (3.92) 0.29
 
 Significant Accounting Policies  1-2  

The Accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of the financial statements

As per our repo�t of even date

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants
Fi�m's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/- 
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27/06/2024 

Sd/- 
(Vipul Prakash) 
Managing Director 
(DIN:01334649)

Sd/- 
(Sanjay Kumar Jain) 
Director 
(DIN:01014176)

Sd/- 
(Siva Prasad Nandu�i)
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/- 
(Sumant Kuthiala)
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- 
(Vibha Wadhwa)
Company Secreta�y 
(ICSI Mem. No. 29381)

Notes
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

Pa�ticulars
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024
Year Ended 

March 31, 2023

A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Profit Before Tax    (33,734.55) 2,238.44
 
 Adjustment For:  
 Depreciation & Amo�tization    8,779.38 11,662.76
 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets   55.20 (12.71)
 Liabilities W�itten back    - (43.05)
 Interest Expenses    11,772.98 1,907.50
 Interest Income on Fixed Deposits   (8.26) (10.62)
 Operating profit before working capital changes  (13,135.24) 15,742.32

 Adjustments For:  
 (Increase)/Decrease in Sund�y Debtors  (76,372.48) (47,314.82)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Loans,Advances & Other assets (3,250.36) (3,613.48)
 Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payable  7,037.35 11,674.86
 Increase/(decrease) in Liabilities & Provisions  4,618.98 23,829.61
 
 Cash Generated from operations   (81,101.75) 318.49
 Less: Direct Tax Paid    11,588.68 (26,873.52)
 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  (69,513.07) (26,555.02)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities  
 Purchase of Prope�ty, Plant and Equipment 
 and Intangible Assets    (1,28,355.43) (59,107.42)
 Proceeds from sale of Prope�ty, 
 Plant and Equipment    296.65 12.71
 Increase/(decrease) in Payable towards 
 business transfer agreement    - 38,102.79
 (Increase)/Decrease in Capital Advances  (40,200.00) -
 (Increase)/ Decrease in Fixed Deposit 
 placed with banks (including interest)  98.13 13.95
 
 Net Cash flow from Investing Activity  (1,68,160.66) (20,977.96)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities  
 Repayment of Sho�t te�m bo�rowings   (42,500.00) (21,500.00)
 Proceeds from Sho�t te�m bo�rowings  1,06,429.89 49,500.00
 Proceeds from Long te�m bo�rowings  1,85,000.00 -
 Increase in Share Capital    - 26,900.63
 Expenses for Proposed Initial Public Offer  (1,724.37) (1,512.50)
 Interest Expenses    (11,772.98) (1,907.50)
 
 Net Cash flow from Financing Activity  2,35,432.54 51,480.63
  
 Net inc/(dec.) in cash &cash equivalent 
 du�ing the year (A+B+C)    (2,241.18) 3,947.65
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 Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 6,074.99 2,127.34
 
 Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the Year 
 (Refer Note No.15)    3,833.81 6,074.99

 Cash & Cash Equivalents:  
 Cash on Hand    - -
 On Cu�rent Accounts    3,833.81 6,074.99
        3,833.81 6,074.99

Note
Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the financial statements are an integral 
pa�t of this Cash Flow Statement.
  

The Accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of the financial statements

As per our repo�t of even date

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants
Fi�m's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/- 
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27/06/2024 

Sd/- 
(Vipul Prakash) 
Managing Director 
(DIN:01334649)

Sd/- 
(Sanjay Kumar Jain) 
Director 
(DIN:01014176)

Sd/- 
(Siva Prasad Nandu�i)
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/- 
(Sumant Kuthiala)
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- 
(Vibha Wadhwa)
Company Secreta�y 
(ICSI Mem. No. 29381)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1). CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Diensten Tech Limited (fo�merly known as JKT Consult ing Limited) (CIN: 

U74140DL2007PLC160160) was incorporated on 06.03.2007 as a Public Limited Company. 

The Ce�tificate of Commencement of Business was granted by the Registrar of Companies, 

NCT of Delhi and Ha�yana with effect from 19.06.2007. The Company has its registered office 

at A-2, Local Shopping Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash - II, New Delhi - 110048 and its 

corporate office at F- 3, Sector 3, Noida 201301. The main objectives of the Company is to 

render as p�incipals, consulting se�vices including se�vice related to hi�ing, rec�uitment and 

deputation of technical and other personnel (including labour-skilled, semi-skilled or 

unskilled) for deployment in India or Abroad in va�ious fields of technologies and provide 

Business solution and consultation in the field of Computer Science, Project Planning and 

other related areas to its clients in India and Abroad.

2). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Basis of Preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted 

accounting p�inciples in India under the histo�ical cost convention on acc�ual basis. Pursuant 

to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are presc�ibed by 

Central Gove�nment in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Repo�ting 

Autho�ity, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall 

continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in 

all mate�ial aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 211(3c) of the 

Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, as amended and other provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

 All assets and liabilities have been classified as cu�rent or non-cu�rent as per the Company's 

operating cycle and other c�ite�ia set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based 

on the nature of se�vices and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 

their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has asce�tained its operating 

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of cu�rent - non cu�rent classification of assets and 

liabilities.

 The financial statements are presented in Rupees `, which is the functional cu�rency of the 

Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands except othe�wise stated.

B Use of Estimates

 The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and 

assumptions considered in the repo�ted amounts of assets and liabilities, including the 

disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the repo�ted 

income and expenses du�ing the repo�ting pe�iod like provision for employee benefits, useful 

lives of prope�ty plant & equipments and provision for taxation etc. The Management believe 
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that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are p�udent and reasonable. 

Future results could differ due to these estimates between the actual results and the 

estimates are recognized in the pe�iods in which the results are known/ mate�ialize.

C Revenue Recognition

 The company de�ives its revenues p�ima�ily from (a) Info�mation Se�vices and Consulting 

Se�vices and (b) Corporate Training Se�vices. Revenue from Info�mation Se�vices and 

Consulting Se�vices on time basis is recognized as the related se�vices are rendered. Pre-

received Income represent the excess of billing over cost an ea�ning while acc�ued income 

represent the excess of cost and ea�ning over billing. Corporate Training Se�vices Revenue is 

recognized on a time propo�tion basis taking into account the time spent thereon compared 

with the scheduled completion thereof and the total course fee.

- Unbilled revenue represents value of se�vices pe�fo�med in accordance with the 

contract te�ms but not billed

- Sales of traded goods is recognized on passing of �isks & rewards of goods to the 

customers and as per the te�ms of the sales.

- The revenue are shown net of trade discount, goods and se�vices tax and sales retu�ns.

- Revenue relating to interest income is recognised on time propo�tionate basis 

dete�mined by the amount outstanding and the rate applicable and where no significant 

unce�tainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

D Prope�ty Plant & Equipment and Capital work-in-progress

 Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impai�ment losses, if any. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes 

and other directly att�ibutable expenses incu�red to b�ing the assets to their working condition 

for intended use.

 Subsequent costs related to an item of Prope�ty, Plant & Equipment are recognised in the 

ca��ying amount of the item if the recognition c�ite�ia are met.Gain/loss on sale of prope�ty, 

plant & equipment are measured as the difference between the net proceeds and ca��ying 

amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the pe�iod in 

which the asset is sold.

 Prope�ty, plant & equipment under const�uction and cost of assets not put to use before year 

end are shown as capital work in progress, while advance paid towards acquisition of 

prope�ty, plant & equipment are shown as capital advance under the head Loans and 

Advances.

E Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are 

ca��ied at cost less accumulated amo�tization and impai�ment. Subsequent expenditure is 

capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to 

which it relates.
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 Customer Contracts, Assembled Workforce and Goodwill are recognised as intangible assets 

representing the future economic benefits a�ising from business unde�taking acquired as per 

Business Transfer Agreement that are not individually identified and separately recognized.

F Depreciation and Amo�tization Prope�ty Plant & Equipment

 Depreciation on prope�ty plant & equipment is provided using straight line method as per the 

useful life presc�ibed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 In respect of prope�ty plant & equipment whose useful life has been revised, the unamo�tized 

depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

 Intangible Assets

 The Intangible Assets are amo�tized over the useful life over which future economic benefits 

are expected to realize. The amo�tization pe�iod is reviewed at the end of each financial year. 

Changes in expected useful life or the expected patte�n of consumption of future economic 

benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amo�tization pe�iod or method, 

as approp�iate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. Intangible Assets with 

indefinite useful lives are not amo�tised, but are tested for impai�ment annually.

G Impai�ment of Assets

 The ca��ying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to dete�mine whether 

there is any indication of impai�ment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 

assets is estimated.

 An impai�ment loss is recognized, whenever the ca��ying amount of assets or its cash 

generating units exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of 

the asset's net selling p�ice and value in use which is dete�mined based on the estimated 

future cash flow generated from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end 

of its useful life, discounted to their present value.

 An impai�ment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates made to dete�mine 

and recognize the recoverable amount in the earlier year, and to the extent that the assets' 

ca��ying amount does not exceed the ca��ying amount that would have been dete�mined (net 

of depreciation or amo�tization), had no impai�ment loss been recognised.

H Foreign Cu�renc Transactions Initial Recognition

 Foreign cu�rency transactions are recorded in the repo�ting cu�rency by applying to the 

foreign cu�rency amount the exchange rate between the repo�ting cu�rency and the foreign 

cu�rency at the date of the transaction.

 Conversion

 Foreign cu�rency moneta�y items are repo�ted using the closing rate. Non - moneta�y items 

which are ca��ied in te�ms of histo�ical cost denominated in a foreign cu�rency, are repo�ted 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non moneta�y items which are 
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ca��ied at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign cu�rency are repo�ted 

using the exchange rates that existed when the values were dete�mined.

 Exchange Differences

 Exchange differences a�ising on the settlement of moneta�y items or on restatement of 

moneta�y items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded du�ing the 

pe�iod, are recognized as income or as expenses in the pe�iod in which they a�ise.

I Provision for Cu�rent and Defe�red Tax

 Cu�rent tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as dete�mined in 

accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and 

other applicable tax laws.

 Minimum Alte�nate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future 

economic benefits in the fo�m of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an 

asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay no�mal income tax. 

Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an assets in the Balance Sheet where it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company.

 Defe�red tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the 

taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or 

substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Defe�red tax liabilities are recognized for 

all timing differences. Defe�red tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is a 

reasonable ce�tainty that assets can be realized in future. However, where there is 

unabsorbed depreciation or ca��y fo�ward of losses and item related to capital losses, 

defe�red tax assets are recognized only if there is a vi�tual ce�tainty suppo�ted by convincing 

evidence of realization of such assets.

J Retirement Benefits

 Sho�t te�m employee benefits

 All employee benefits payable /available within twelve months of rende�ing the se�vice are 

classified as sho�t-te�m employee benefits. Benefits such as sala�ies, etc., are recognised in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss in the pe�iod in which the employee renders the related 

se�vice.

 Defined Cont�ibution Plan

 Cont�ibutions payable to recognized Provident Fund and Labour Welfare Fund which are 

substantially defined cont�ibution plans, are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit 

& Loss, as they are incu�red.

 Defined Benefit Plan

 The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation 

under such defined benefit plan is dete�mined based on actua�ial valuation using the 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 82

Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each pe�iod of se�vice as giving �ise to 

additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up 

the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future 

cash flows. The discount rate used for dete�mining the present value of the obligation under 

defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Gove�nment secu�ities as at the 

Balance Sheet date relevant to the matu�ity pe�iod of the obligation. Actua�ial gains and losses 

are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Other long te�m employee benefits

 Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other long-te�m 

employee benefits. The obligation in respect of compensated absences is provided on the 

basis of actua�ial valuation ca��ied out by an independent actua�y using the Projected Unit 

Credit Method, which recognizes each pe�iod of se�vice as giving �ise to additional unit of 

employees benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final 

obligation. Actua�ial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss.

K Lease

 Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the �isks and benefits of ownership 

of the leased assets are recognized as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are 

recognized as an expenses in the statement of profit and loss as per the lease te�ms.

 The leases, where substantially all the �isks and rewards of ownership vest in the Company are 

classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the 

lower of fair value or present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an 

equivalent amount.

L Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in 

respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) 

are not discounted to their present value and are dete�mined based on best estimates 

required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 

balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the cu�rent best estimates. Contingent 

liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to accounts. A contingent asset is 

neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

M Bo�rowing costs

 Bo�rowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences a�ising from 

foreign cu�rency bo�rowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 

costs) incu�red by the Company in connection with the bo�rowing of funds.

 Bo�rowing costs directly att�ibutable to acquisition or const�uction of the Prope�ty, plant and 

equipment and Intangible Assets, which necessa�ily take a substantial Year of time to get 
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ready for their intended use are capitalized. Other bo�rowing costs are recognised as an 

expense in the Year in which they are incu�red.

N Ea�ning Per Share (EPS)

 In dete�mining Ea�ning per Share, the company considers the net profit after tax and includes 

the post tax effect of any extra ordina�y item.

 Basic ea�ning per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding du�ing the Year.

 Diluted ea�nings per shares is computed by dividing the Net profit after tax by the weighted 

average number of equity shares considered for de�iving basic ea�nings per share and also 

the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon conversion of 

all dilutive potential shares, if any.

O Cash and Cash Equivalent

 Cash comp�ises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sho�t-

te�m balances (with an o�iginal matu�ity of three months or less from the date of acquisition) 

and which are subject to insignificant �isk of changes in value.

P Cash Flow Statement

 Cash Flows are repo�ted using indirect method, whereby the Net Profit before tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any defe�rals or acc�uals of past or future 

operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing 

or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 

segregated.
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                                                                As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

3)   SHARE CAPITAL
 Autho�ized
 
  10000000 Equity Shares (March 31, 2023: 10000000) 
 of ` 10 each    1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
       1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
 
 Issued, subsc�ibed and fully paid-up
 6052646 Equity Shares (March 31, 2023: 6052646) 
 of ` 10 each    60,526.46 60,526.46
       60,526.46 60,526.46 
(a) Reconciliation of number of Shares

                        As At March 31, 2024                  As At March 31, 2023
        Number of  Amount Number of  Amount
       Shares*  Shares*
 
 Equity Shares 
 Balance as at the beginning 
 of the year     6052646 60,526.46 3362583 33,625.83
 Add: Issued du�ing the year - - 2690063 26,900.63
 Less:- Buy back du�ing the year - - - -
 Balance as at the end of the year 6052646 60,526.46 6052646 60,526.46

b) Te�ms/ �ight attached to the Equity Shares

 The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each 
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if any, proposed by the 
Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will 
be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after dist�ibution of all preferential 
amounts. The dist�ibution will be in propo�tion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

c) Shares held by the holding company

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Equity Share of ` 10/- Each As At 
March 31, 2024

As At 
March 31, 2023

No. of 
Shares *

% held No. of 
Shares *

% held

Holding Company:
J.K.Traders Limited

4115792 68.00% 4115792 68.00%
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d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the 
Company

e) Details of Promote�'s Shareholding:

 * Number of shares have been given in absolute numbers

f) No shares have been allotted without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus 
shares or no share had bought back, du�ing the pe�iod of five years immediately preceding the 
balance sheet date.

                                                                                                                                        As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4)  RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

 Surplus/ (Deficit) in statement of profit and loss
 Balance as at the beginning of the year (18,020.67) (19,626.62)
 Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (23,704.86) 1,605.96
 Balance as at the end of the year (41,725.53) (18,020.67)

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Equity Share of ` 10/- Each As At 
March 31, 2024

As At 
March 31, 2023

No. of 
Shares *

% held No. of 
Shares *

% held

J.K.Traders Limited 4115792 68.00% 4115792 68.00%

Mr. Vipul Prakash 832239 13.75% 832239 13.75%

Ms. Tina Prakash 832239 13.75% 832239 13.75%

Promote�'s Name As At
 March 31, 2024

As At 
March 31, 2023

% Change in 
Number of shares

No. of 
Shares *

% held No. of 
Shares *

% held

J.K.Traders Limited 4115792 68.00% 4115792 68.00% 0.00%

Mr. Vipul Prakash 832239 13.75% 832239 13.75% 0.00%

Mr. Abhishek Singhania 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%

Promote�'s Name As At
 March 31, 2023

As At 
March 31, 2022

% Change in 
Number of shares

No. of 
Shares *

% held No. of 
Shares *

% held

J.K.Traders Limited 4115792 68.00% 2286551 68.00% 80.00%

Mr. Vipul Prakash 832239 13.75% 462355 13.75% 80.00%

Mr. Abhishek Singhania 1 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
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                                                                                      As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5)  LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

 Bo�rowings from financial institutions (Unsecured)
 Julius Baer Capital (India) P�ivate Limited 
 (refer note "a" below)   1,85,000.00 -
       1,85,000.00 -

a)  Te�ms and Conditions of Bo�rowings:

6) OTHER LIABILITIES
                                     Non Cu�rent                                                     Cu�rent
                           As At                         As At                            As At                         As At 
     March 31, 2024   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
  Interest acc�ued 
 and not due on bo�rowings - - 6,655.62 -
 Statuto�y Dues  - - 14,408.32 8,442.35
 Payable as per 
 Business Transfer Agreement 
 (also refer Note 34) - - 38,102.79 38,102.79
 Employee Benefits 
 Payable as per BTA - 2,586.43 - 495.74
 Payable against transfer 
 of Employee Benefits - - - 3,674.99
     - 2,586.43  59,166.73 50,715.87

7) PROVISIONS
                 Non Cu�rent                                                     Cu�rent
                           As At                         As At                            As At                         As At 
     March 31, 2024   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 
 Provision for 
 employee benefits
 Gratuity (unfunded) 5,311.98 5,902.90 425.81 522.56
 Leave Encashment (unfunded) 5,095.97 6,085.22 1,878.63 1,447.17
     10,407.95 11,988.12  2,304.44 1,969.73

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Repayment Bullet repayment of p�incipal at the end of the tenure of the facility 
or Matu�ity Date

Matu�ity Date 36 months from the date of the first disbursement (i.e. September 
26, 2026)

Interest Rate Annualised 9.50% p.a. (Interest is payable on pe�iodic basis)

Pledge Pledged against 141,250 shares of J.K. Cements Limited held in 
name of promotor cum shareholder along with his personal 
guarantee.
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8) SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

                                                       As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

 Secured Bo�rowings from banks
 Cash Credit from ICICI Bank (refer note "a" below) 43,466.51 -
 Bill Discounting from ICICI Bank (refer note "a" below) 38,463.37 -

 Unsecured Bo�rowings from related pa�ties
 JK Technosoft Limited (refer note "b" below) - 22,000.00
 Translink Consulting P�ivate Limited (refer note "c" below) - 6,000.00
 Genext Estates P�ivate Limited (refer note "d" below) 10,000.00 -
       91,929.88 28,000.00

 a) Cash Credit and Bill Discounting from ICICI Bank is secured by following:
  - Corporate Guarantee of JK Traders Limited.
  - Pledge of 40,000 Equity shares of J K Cements Limited, held by promoter shareholder 

cum director
  - Exclusive charge on all existing and future cu�rent assets including receivables and 

movablfeixed assets of the company. The cash credit and inland bill discounting limits 

ca��ies interest rate of REPO + 2.75 % per annum.

 b) Unsecured bo�rowing from JK Technosoft Limited was repayable on demand or by 

March 31, 2024 (whichever is earlier); Interest rate 10.00% p.a. The amount is repaid in 

full by March 31, 2024

 c) Unsecured bo�rowing from Translink Consulting P�ivate Limited was repayable on 

demand or by March 31, 2024 (whichever is earlier); Interest rate 10.00% p.a The amount 

is repaid in full as at March 31, 2024.

 d) Unsecured bo�rowing from Genext Estates P�ivate Limited is repayable on demand or by 

June 30, 2024 (whichever is earlier); Interest rate 10.00% p.a.

9) TRADE PAYABLES

                                                                               As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

 Amount due to Micro and Small Enterp�ise 
 (Refer subnote below for details) 752.24 249.08
 Amount Due To Others  19,000.71 12,466.51

       19,752.94 12,715.59

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 88

a) Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

 As at March 31, 2024

 As at March 31, 2023

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Pa�ticulars Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than
3 years

Unbilled 
dues

Total

Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterp�ises and 
small enterp�ises

752.24 - � - 752.24

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterp�ises and small
enterp�ises

8,726.11 28.00 � - 10,246.59 19,000.70

Disputed dues of micro 
enterp�ises and small 
enterp�ises

- - � - -

Disputed dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterp�ises and small 
enterp�ises

- - � - -

Total 9,478.35 28.00 � - 10,246.59 19,752.94

Pa�ticulars Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than
3 years

Unbilled 
dues

Total

Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterp�ises and 
small enterp�ises

249.08 - � - 249.08

Total outstanding dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterp�ises and small
enterp�ises

3,116.90 - � - 9,349.61 12,466.51

Disputed dues of micro 
enterp�ises and small 
enterp�ises

- - � - -

Disputed dues of 
creditors other than micro 
enterp�ises and small 
enterp�ises

- - � - -

Total 3,365.99 - � - 9,349.61 12,715.59
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b) As per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount due as at the year end due to Micro 
and Small enterp�ises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterp�ises Act, 2006 is as given 
below :

 Pa�ticulars                                                                        As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 i) The P�incipal Amount & Interest due thereon 
  remaining unpaid to any supplier as at end of
  the pe�iod
  - P�incipal Amount 752.24 249.08
  - Interest Payable on Outstanding Amount Nil Nil

 ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in te�ms  Nil Nil
  of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
  Enterp�ises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
  along with the amount of the payment made to 
  the supplier beyond the appointed day du�ing each 
  accounting year

 iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the  Nil Nil
  pe�iod of delay in making payment (which has 
  been paid but beyond the appointed day du�ing 
  the year) but without adding the interest specified 
  under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterp�ises 
  Development Act, 2006;

 iv) The amount of interest acc�ued and remaining  Nil Nil
  unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

 v) The amount of fu�ther interest remaining due  Nil Nil
  and payable even in the succeeding years, 
  until such date when the interest dues above 
  are actually paid to the small enterp�ise, for the 
  purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure 
  under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
  Enterp�ises Development Act, 2006.

c) The amount does not include any amount due to be transfe�red to Investor Protection and 
Education fund.

d) This info�mation has been compiled in respect of pa�ties to the extent they could be identified 
as Micro and Small Enterp�ises on the basis of info�mation available with the Management as 
at March 31, 2024.

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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11) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

                                                                              As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Defe�red Tax Assets
 Provision for Gratuity   1,491.83 430.49
 Provision for Leave Encashment 1,813.40 949.96
 Unabsorbed Loss/ Depreciation 12,726.21 -
       16,031.44 1,380.44 
 Defe�red Tax Liabilities
 Depreciation and Amo�tization 4,723.96 345.21
        4,723.96 345.21 
 
 Defe�red Tax Assets (Net)   11,307.47 1,035.24  

12) LOANS AND ADVANCES

                         Non Cu�rent                                                     Cu�rent
                           As At                         As At                            As At                         As At 
     March 31, 2024   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
  Unsecured and 
 Considered Good

 Secu�ity Deposit - - 109.00 84.00
 Capital Advance 
 (also refer Note 36) 40,200.00 - - -
 Balance with Gove�nment 
 Autho�ities   - - 68.76 72.30
 Balance with Income Tax 
 Autho�ities   16,702.19 - - 28,571.70
 Net of provision of ` Nil 
 (March 31, 2023:
  ` 4,337.15 Thousands)      
     56,902.19 -  177.76 28,728.00 

13) OTHER ASSETS
                                    Non Cu�rent                                                     Cu�rent
                           As At                         As At                            As At                         As At 
     March 31, 2024   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 (Unsecured and 
 Considered Good)

 MAT Credit Receivable 8,269.25 8,230.96 - -
 Fixed Deposit with bank 
 o�iginal matu�ity for more 
 than 12 months 
 (Refer Note No. 15) 76.21 - - -

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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 Interest Acc�ued on Bank 
 Deposit   2.22 - - 20.17
 Prepaid Expenses 6.95 - 5,781.23 3,439.96
 Expenses for Proposed 
 Initial Public Offer - - 3,236.87 1,512.50
 Advance to Suppliers - - 568.29 289.86
 Staff Advance  - - 325.08 105.01
 Other Receivables - - 433.60 51.44
     8,354.63 8,230.96  10,345.07 5,418.94 

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

                                                                            As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Unsecured, considered Good 1,29,735.29 53,362.81
 Unsecured, considered Doubtful - -
       1,29,735.29 53,362.81
 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
       1,29,735.29 53,362.81 

a) Trade Receivable Aging schedule 

 As at March 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Pa�ticulars Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment

Not Due Less than 
6 Months

6 months 
– 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Unbilled 
Revenue

Total

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables – 
considered good

59,897.33 13,680.98 - - 925.37 - 55,231.61 1,29,735.29

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables – 
considered doubtful

- - - - - - -

Disputed Trade 
receivables - 
considered good

- - - - - - -

Disputed  Trade�
Receivables – 
considered doubtful

- - - - - - -

Total 59,897.33 13,680.98 - - 925.37 - 55,231.61 1,29,735.29
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 As at March 31, 2023

b) Refer Note 24 for balances with related pa�ties
c) The company do not have any trade receivables which are credit impaired or which have 

significant increase in credit �isk.

15) CASH AND OTHER BANK BALANCES

                        Non Cu�rent                                                     Cu�rent
                           As At                         As At                            As At                         As At 
     March 31, 2024   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
  Cash & Cash Equivalents
 Balances with Scheduled banks :
 
 Cu�rent accounts - - 3,833.81 6,074.99
       - - 3,833.81 6,074.99
  Other Balances
 Fixed Deposit with Bank 
 o�iginal matu�ity for more 
 than 3 months but less 
 than 12 months  - - - 94.11
 
 Fixed Deposit with Bank 
 o�iginal matu�ity for more 
 than 12 months* 76.21 - - 54.02
     76.21 - - 148.14
 Less: Amount disclosed 
 under non-cu�rent assets 
 (Refer Note No. 13) 76.21 - - -
      - -  3,833.81 6,223.12 
 
 * Fixed Deposits for ` 76.21 (` 54.02 as on March 31, 2023), pledged with Assistant 

Commissioner, UP Trade Tax Depa�tment against pending litigations

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Pa�ticulars Outstanding for following pe�iods from due date of payment

Not Due Less than 
6 Months

6 months 
– 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Unbilled 
dues

Total

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables – 
considered good

22,288.22 3,367.25 - 1,345.74 - - 26,361.60 53,362.81

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables – 
considered doubtful

- - - - - - -

Disputed Trade 
receivables - 
considered good

- - - - - - -

Disputed  Trade�
Receivables – 
considered doubtful

- - - - - - -

Total 22,288.22 3,367.25 - 1,345.74 - - 26,361.60 53,362.81
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Customer 
Contracts

Assembled 
Workforce

Goodwill Total

Gross Ca��ying Amount:

At Ap�il 1, 2022 - - - -

Additions 41,903.16 11,968.33 3,418.51 57,290.00

Disposals - - - -

At March 31, 2023 41,903.16 11,968.33 3,418.51 57,290.00

Additions 97,666.61 16,708.40 8,695.83 1,23,070.84

Disposals - - - -

At March 31, 2024 1,39,569.78 28,676.72 12,114.34 1,80,360.84

Amo�tization:

At Ap�il 1, 2022 - - - -

Additions 8,380.63 2,393.67 683.70 11,458.00

Disposals - - - -

At March 31, 2023 8,380.63 2,393.67 683.70 11,458.00

Additions 5,945.64 1,443.80 501.61 7,891.04

Disposals - - - -

At March 31, 2024 14,326.27 3,837.46 1,185.31 19,349.04

Net Ca��ying amount :

At March 31, 2023 33,522.53 9,574.66 2,734.81 45,832.00

At March 31, 2024 1,25,243.51 24,839.26 10,929.03 1,61,011.80

B      Intangible Assets

C Intangible Assets under Development
       Intangible Assets Total
 At Ap�il 1, 2022    - -
 Additions     - -
 Capitalisation du�ing the year - -
 At March 31, 2023   - -
 Additions (Refer Note c below) 6,222.58 6,222.58
 Capitalisation du�ing the Year 4,370.79 4,370.79
 At March 31, 2024   1,851.79 1,851.79

 (a)  Aging schedule of Intangible Assets under Development:
  

  Figures in brackets denotes amounts for March 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Pa�ticulars Amount in Intangible Assets under 
Development for a pe�iod of

Total

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 years

Projects in progress 1,851.79 - - - 1,851.79

(-) (-) (-) (-) -

Projects tempora�ily 
suspended

- - - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
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 (b) There are no Intangible Assets under Development as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 
31, 2023 whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared to its 
o�iginal plan.

 (c) Addition du�ing the year includes bo�rowing cost capitalised of ` 3,088.58 thousands 
(March 31, 2023: Nil ) as per AS-16.

16)  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

 Revenue from Sale of Goods: 
 Traded Goods    1,783.09 1,594.14

 Revenue from Se�vices:   
 Info�mation Se�vices and Consulting Se�vices 3,89,776.67 3,31,652.40
 Corporate Training Se�vices 18,099.57 42,022.02
       4,09,659.33 3,75,268.56

17)  OTHER INCOME 

                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
 Interest Income on:
 - Fixed Deposits    8.26 10.62
 - Income Tax Refund   1,133.26 189.62
 Notice Pay Recove�y   168.77 428.37
 Liabilities W�itten back  - 43.05
 Profit on Sale of PPE   - 12.71
 Foreign exchange loss (Net) 46.46 -
 Miscellaneous Income  80.83 77.71
       1,437.57 762.09

18)  PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 

 Purchases of Traded Goods 1,304.33 1,156.20
       1,304.33 1,156.20

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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19)  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

                                                                                            Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 

 Sala�ies and Wages   2,85,535.07 1,69,838.62
 Gratuity expense   1,287.77 1,479.04
 Leave encashment expense 427.26 2,642.24
 Cont�ibution to Provident and other Funds 10,829.44 7,124.02
 Staff Welfare Expenses  492.92 377.11
       2,98,572.46 1,81,461.03

20)  FINANCE COST 
 
                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
 Interest on Bo�rowings:   
 - loans from banks   3,010.25 -
 - loans from financial institution 2,536.53 -
 - loans from related pa�ty and others 5,974.26 1,785.20
 Other Interest Expenses  1.93 122.30
 Other Bo�rowing Costs  250.00 -
       11,772.98 1,907.50

21)  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
 
                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
 
 Depreciation on Prope�ty Plant & Equipment 888.34 204.76
 Amo�tisation of Intangible Assets 7,891.04 11,458.00
       8,779.38 11,662.76
 
22) OTHER EXPENSES
 
                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
 
 Rent      1,203.77 340.75
 Rates and taxes    164.65 123.14
 Professional Fees & Legal Expenses 30,550.63 39,951.48
 Manpower Outsourcing Cost 81,897.49 1,31,417.49
 Repair and Maintenance   
 - Office     773.41 4.36
 - Others     509.16 637.76
 Communication Expenses  162.58 195.58
 P�inting and Statione�y  79.75 47.32

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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 Postage and Cou�ier   113.08 9.16
 Foreign exchange loss (Net) - 9.13
 Insurance Charges   463.08 93.59
 Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 2,025.30 667.22
 Loss on Sale of PPE   55.20 -
 Staff Rec�uitment Cost  3,622.42 2,617.66
 Software Maintenance Cost 817.76 492.77
 Audit Fee (Refer subnote (a) below) 850.00 850.00
 Bank Charges    36.05 18.82
 Bad Debts W�itten off   328.81 -
 Miscellaneous Expenses  749.16 128.48
       1,24,402.30  1,77,604.70 

(a)  Details of payment made to audito�'s is as follows*:
 
                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
 
 Statuto�y Audit Fee   700.00 700.00
 Tax Audit Fee    150.00 150.00

 * excluding fees for proposed initial public offer related se�vices of `435 thousands (`70 
thousands for year ended March 31, 2023), debited to Other Assets in Note 13

23)  EARNING PER SHARE
 
                                                                     Year ended                Year ended 
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

 Profit for the Year   (23,704.86) 1,605.96
 Amount available for Equity Shares (23,704.86) 1,605.96
 Weighted Average number of Shares 60,52,646 56,17,814
 Ea�ning per share*   
  Basic     (3.92) 0.29
  Diluted    (3.92) 0.29
 Face Value per share   10 10

 * Ea�ning per share have been given in absolute numbers

24) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

 a. Name of Related Pa�ties and desc�iption of relationship:

  Holding Company  J.K. Traders Limited
       J K Technosoft Limited 
        (ceased to be holding w.e.f. 29.03.2022)

  

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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  Enterp�ises in which Key Manage�ial 

  Personnel (KMP) of the company have J K Technosoft Limited

       significant influence 

       J K Education Foundation

       J. K. Cotton Limited

       J K Consultancy & Se�vices Pvt. Ltd. '    

       Jaykey Enterp�ises Ltd

       Translink Consulting P�ivate Limited 

        Genext Estates P�ivate Limited 

       WOW Softech Pvt Ltd

 Key Manage�ial Personnel  Mr. Abhishek Singhania (Director)

       Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta (Director) 

       Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain (Director)

       Mr. Vipul Prakash (Director) 

       w.e.f. 14.02.2022, 

        (Managing Director w.e.f 30.05.2022)

       Ms. Sunaina P�imlani Gera (Director) 

       w.e.f. 02.09.2022 

       Ms. Kanika Vaswani (Director) 

       w.e.f. 02.09.2022

       Ms. Vibha Wadhwa (Company Secreta�y) 

       w.e.f. 22.12.2022

       Mr. Viney (Company Secreta�y) 

       (from 02.09.2022 to 22.12.2022) 

       Mr. Manoj Kumar (CEO) 

        (from 19.10.2022 to 01.06.2023)

       (Additional Director) w.e.f 24.08.2023 

       Mr. Siva Prasad Nandu�i (CEO) 

       w.e.f. 10.06.2023 

       Mr. Sumant Kuthiala (CFO) w.e.f 22.12.2022

 Relative to Key Management Personnel Ms. Tina Prakash 
       (Wife of Director- Vipul Prakash)

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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b. Transactions with related pa�ties du�ing the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Desc�iption Year ended Mar. 31, 2024 Year ended Mar. 31, 2023

Holding 
Company

Enterp�ises 
in which 

KMP have 
significant 
influence

Key 
Manage�ial 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Holding 
Company

Enterp�ises 
in which 

KMP have 
significant 
influence

Key 
Manage�ial 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Sale of Se�vices/ Product

JK Technosoft Limited

Interest  Paid

JK Technosoft Limited

Translink Colsulting Pvt Ltd

Genext Estates P�ivate Limited

Rent Paid

JK Technosoft Limited

JK Education Foundation

J. K. Cotton Limited

Jaykey Enterp�ises Ltd

Reimbursement of Costs

JK Technosoft Limited

Acquisition Transfer of Gratuity/ Leave Encashment

JK Technosoft Limited

Purchase of Se�vices/ Product

WOW Softech Pvt Ltd

Purchase of Prope�ty Plant & Equipments & Intangible Assets

JK Technosoft Limited

Sale of Prope�ty Plant & Equipments & Intangible Assets

J K Consultancy & Se�vices Pvt. Ltd.

Unsecured Bo�rowings taken

JK Technosoft Limited

Translink Colsulting Pvt Ltd

Genext Estates P�ivate Limited

Repayment of Unsecured Bo�rowings

JK Technosoft Limited

Translink Colsulting Pvt Ltd

Genext Estates P�ivate Limited

Reimbursements Of Expenses

J K Consultancy & Se�vices Pvt. Ltd.

JK Education Foundation

Manoj Kumar

Vibha Wadhwa

Siva Prasad Nandu�i

Sumant Kuthiala

Director Fee

Sunaina P�imlani Gera

Kanika Vaswani

Consultancy Se�vices

Manoj Kumar

Remuneration

Vibha Wadhwa

Manoj Kumar

Viney

Siva Prasad Nandu�i

Sumant Kuthiala

Allottment of Equity Shares

JK Traders Limited

Vipul Prakash

Tina Prakash

-   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

-   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

-

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

              -   

     52,552.31 

         5,553.12 

190.54 

230.60 

60.00 

12.00 

72.00 

666.40 

42,406.50 

                    -   

428.50 

                    -   

                7.00 

                    -   

4,000.00 

20,500.00 

22,000.00 

10,000.00 

10,500.00 

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

              -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

           75.09 

             0.37 

         294.94 

             1.92 

         125.00 

         125.00 

      1,200.00 

         685.58 

      3,236.11 

                    -   

    19,369.68 

      1,248.00 

                 -   

                 -   

                 -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                 -   

                   -   

                   -   

      18,292.41 

                   -   

                   -   

1,58,040.45 

1,654.79 

130.41 

-   

60.00 

14.00 

16.40 

-   

1,32,539.69 

16,097.21 

-   

57,297.62 

-   

39,500.00 

10,000.00 

-   

17,500.00 

4,000.00 

-   

4.23 

0.48 

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

                   -   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

                             

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

                             

-   

                             

-   

                             

-   

                             

-   

                             

-   

-   

-   

                             

-   

-   

-   

-   

-   

52.87 

-   

-   

-   

25.00 

25.00 

                             

-   

192.91 

2,905.73 

216.07 

-   

195.32 

-   

3,698.84 

3,698.84 
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c. Balance with related pa�ties

 * (Net of Trade Payable (including unbilled) of` 268.49 Thousands (` 29,462.65 Thousands in year ended March 
31,2023))

d. All Related Pa�ty Transactions entered du�ing the year were in ordina�y course of the business 
and on a�m's length basis.

e. Mr. Abhishek Singhania has given personal guarantee towards long te�m bo�rowing of the 
company along with pledge of individual shares held in personal capacity.

f. Gratuity and Leave Encashment are not shown separately in manage�ial remuneration as 
disclosed above, the same are included in provision for the company as a whole

25) RATIO ANALYSIS

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Desc�iption Year ended Mar. 31, 2024 Year ended Mar. 31, 2023

Holding 
Company

Enterp�ises 
in which 

KMP have 
significant 
influence

Key 
Manage�ial 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Holding 
Company

Enterp�ises 
in which 

KMP have 
significant 
influence

Key 
Manage�ial 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Net Trade Receivable (including unbilled)*  
 JK Technosoft Limited 
Payable as per Business Transfer Agreement  
 JK Technosoft Limited 
Unsecured Bo�rowings  
 JK Technosoft Limited 
 Translink Colsulting Pvt Ltd 
 Genext Estates P�ivate Limited 
Payable against transfer of Employee Benefits  
 JK Technosoft Limited 
Trade Payable  
 Jaykey Enterp�ises Ltd 
 J K Consultancy & Se�vices Pvt. Ltd. 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -
-   

2,154.55 

 38,102.79 

 -   
 -   

 10,000.00 

 -   

 110.16 
 135.95

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -
-   

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -
-   

13,933.72 

 38,102.79 

 22,000.00 
 6,000.00 

 3,674.99 

 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -
-   

Desc�iption Numerator Denominator For the year 
ended 

March 31,
2024

For the 
year ended 

March
31, 2023

% change Reason for 
va�iance

Cu�rent ratio Cu�rent 
Assets

Cu�rent 
Liabilities

0.83 1.00 (17.08%) Not Applicable

Debt- Equity 
Ratio

Total Debt Shareholde�’ 
Equity

14.73 0.66 2136.04% Due to increase in 
Long te�m and 
sho�t te�m 
bo�rowing du�ing 
the year and 
decrease in net 
equity

Debt Se�vice 
Coverage ratio

Ea�nings 
available for 
debt se�vice

Debt Se�vice (0.01) 0.68 (101.63%) There is increase 
in Debt in the 
cu�rent year

Retu�n on 
Equity ratio

Net Profits 
after taxes – 
Preference 
Dividend

Average 
Shareholde�’ 
Equity

(77.33) 7.58 (1120.21%) There are losses 
in the cu�rent 
pe�iod, due to 
major increase in 
employee cost & 
finance cost.
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Trade 
Receivable 
Tu�nover Ratio

Revenue Average�
Trade 
Receivable:

4.47 16.84 (73.43%) There is increase 
in Average Trade 
Receivable as at 
repo�ting date

Trade Payable 
Tu�nover Ratio

Purchases 
of goods 
and se�vices

Average�
Trade 
Payables

7.74 34.54 (77.59%) There is increase 
in Average Trade 
Payable in the 
cu�rent pe�iod

Net Capital 
Tu�nover Ratio

Revenue Working 
capital *

(14.10) 2,020.19 (100.70%) Due to increase in 
cu�rent liabilities 
over cu�rent 
assets in cu�rent 
year

Net Profit ratio Net Profit 
after tax

Revenue (0.06) 0.43 (113.46%) There are losses 
in the cu�rent 
pe�iod, due to 
major increase in 
employee & 
finance cost

Retu�n on 
Capital 
Employed

Ea�nings 
before 
interest and 
taxes

Capital 
Employed **

(7.43) 7.84 (194.72%) There are losses 
in the cu�rent 
pe�iod, due to 
major increase in 
employee & 
finance cost. As a 
result of losses, 
there is erosion in 
net wo�th as at 
repo�ting date

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 * Cu�rent assets – Cu�rent liabilities
 ** Tangible Net Wo�th + Total Debt + Defe�red Tax Liability

 Note:
 (i)  Reasons have been explained for va�iance in which % of change is more than 25% as 

compared to previous year.

 (i)  Invento�y Tu�nover Ratio and Retu�n on Investment Ratio are not applicable to the 
company in view of nature of transactions du�ing the year.

26) SANCTIONED WORKING CAPITAL LIMITS

 The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ̀  5 crores in aggregate 

from Bank du�ing the Year on the basis of secu�ity of cu�rent assets of the Company. The 

qua�terly retu�ns/statements filed by the Company with such Bank are not in agreement with 

the books of account of the company and the details are as follows:

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)
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 * Trade Receivables includes related pa�ty receivable

27) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 The Company has classified the va�ious benefit provided to employees as under:

A. Post Employment Benefit Plans: 

 Defined cont�ibution plan

 The Company makes cont�ibution towards provident fund to a defined cont�ibution retirement 

benefit plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund plan is operated by the Regional 

Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company is required to cont�ibute a specified 

percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The other 

cont�ibutions made by Company under Defined Cont�ibutions Plan are towards Labour 

welfare fund.

                                                                           As At                       Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 
 Provident Fund    10,742.23 7,089.87
 Labour Welfare Fund   87.21 34.15
 Total      10,829.44 7,124.02
 
 Defined benefit plan

 Defined benefit plan of the Company is unfunded. The present value of obligation is 

dete�mined based on actua�ial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Under this 

method each pa�ticipant's benefits under the plan are att�ibuted to years of se�vice, taking 

into consideration future sala�y increases and the plan's benefit allocation fo�mula. The 

Company provides for gratuity (a defined benefit plan) to its employees. The Plan provides for 

a lump sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, an amount based on the respective 

employee's fifteen days of last drawn sala�y and years of employment with the Company in 

line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

Qua�ter ended Value per 
books of 
account*

Value as per
qua�terly 

retu�n/statement

Va�iance Remarks

Trade receivables (Inclusive of unbilled revenue

June 30, 2023 71,974.77 72,873.00 898.23 The va�iance in Qua�ter-1 
was mainly on account of 
non repo�ting of debit 
notes and credit notes. 
Fu�ther, in Qua�ter 4, the 
va�iance is on account of 
TDS ent�ies

September 30, 2023 76,155.78 76,199.41 43.63

December 31, 2023 1,17,773.59 1,17,768.93 (4.66)

March 31, 2024 1,29,770.40 1,31,757.39 1,986.99
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the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after 5 years of continuous 

se�vice.

I. Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations:
 
                                                                                                             Gratuity (Unfunded) 
                                                                             On Payroll of Company
  Pa�ticulars                                                                       As At                        Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 6,425.46 254.79
 Acquisition adjustment*  482.66 5,234.97
 Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss  
 Cu�rent se�vice cost   1,748.25 1,587.86
 Interest cost    401.85 357.96
 Net Actua�ial Losses/(Gains) (862.34) (466.78)
 Benefits paid du�ing the year (2,458.10) (543.34)
 Present value of obligations at the end of the year 5,737.79 6,425.46

II. Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet
 
                                                                                                             Gratuity (Unfunded) 
                                                                             On Payroll of Company
  Pa�ticulars                                                                       As At                        Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 
 Present value of obligation as at the end of the year  5,737.79 6,425.46
 Fair value of plan asset as at the end of the year  - -
 Net Lliability /(asset) recognised in balance sheet  5,737.79 6,425.46
 Recognized as under:
 Long te�m provisions (Refer Note 7)  5,311.98 5,902.90
 Sho�t te�m provisions (Refer Note 7) 425.81 522.56

III. Expenses/ (Income) recognized in the statement of income & expenditure account
 
                                                                                 Gratuity (Unfunded) 
                                                                             On Payroll of Company
  Pa�ticulars                                                                       As At                        Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Cu�rent se�vice cost   1,748.25 1,587.86
 Interest cost    401.85 357.96
 Actua�ial (gain)/loss on obligation (862.34) (466.78)
 Expenses recognised in the statement of 
 profit and loss    1,287.76 1,479.04

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)
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IV. Actua�ial assumptions
 
                                                                                                             Gratuity (Unfunded) 
                                                                             On Payroll of Company
  Pa�ticulars                                                                       As At                        Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 
 Mo�tality table (LIC)   IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
       Utlimate Utlimate
 
 Discount rate (per annum)  7.17% 7.39%
  Rate of escalation in sala�y (per annum) 10.00% first year; 10.00% first year;
       7.50% thereafter 7.50% thereafter
 
 Retirement age    60 years 60 years
 * Please refer Note 35 below

B. Other long-te�m employee benefit plans:

 The company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at Balance Sheet date 

taking into account the patte�n of availment of leave while in se�vices and the qualifying sala�y 

on the date of separation. The sala�y considered for calculating leave encashment includes 

Basic sala�y. The present value of obligation is dete�mined based on actua�ial valuation using 

the Projected Unit Credit Method. Under this method each pa�ticipant's benefits under the 

plan are att�ibuted to years of se�vice, taking into consideration future sala�y increases and 

the plan's benefit allocation fo�mula.

28) In the opinion of the Board, the cu�rent assets, loans and advances are approximate of the 

value stated if realized in the ordina�y course of business. The provision for all the known 

liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessa�y.
 
29) EARNINGS & EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
 
                                                                           As At                       Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 Ea�nings in Foreign Cu�rencies
 Corporate Training Se�vices: 7,914.79 1,875.56

 Expenditures in Foreign Cu�rencies
 Purchase of Traded Goods  1,304.33 1,156.20

30) The company is registered as Small Enterp�ises and has obtained MSME registration 

ce�tificate from Minist�y of Micro, Small & Medium Enterp�ises, Gove�nment of India, which is 

effective from Feb�ua�y 04, 2021.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)
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31) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

32) SEGMENT INFORMATION

 The Company is engaged in the business of Info�mation & Consulting Se�vices and Corporate 

Training Se�vices. However, Organisational and management st�ucture of the company and its 

inte�nal financial repo�ting system no�mally does not identify the predominant source of �isks 

and retu�ns of the company for the purpose of its segment repo�ting.

 Basis above, the management has concluded that no separate segment disclosures are 

required as per Accounting standard 17 'Segment Repo�ting'.

33) LEASES

 Operating lease: Company as lessee

 The company has taken premises on operating lease from va�ious pa�ties. These lease 

a�rangements range for a pe�iod between 1 year and 3 years, which include both cancellable 

and non-cancellable leases.
   
 Pa�ticulars                                                                                  As At                            As At
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 Future minimum lease payments  
  Not later than one year 1,254.65 161.80
  Later than one year and not later than five years - 10.00
  More than five years  - -

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

Pa�ticulars As At
March 31, 2024

As At 
March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities not acknowledged as debt:

Trade Tax Demand- Gross:
UP Trade Tax Depa�tment has raised demand FY-2013-
2014. The company appealed against this demand to 
higher autho�ity of UP Tax Depa�tment. A reduction of ` 
372.00 Thousands was granted by Addit ional 
Commissioner, UP Tax Depa�tment, against the demand 
of ̀ 709.08 Thousands by their order dated July 01, 2022.
Fixed Deposits for ̀  76.21 (` 54.02 as on March 31, 2023), 
pledged with UP Trade Tax Depa�tment against pending 
litigations.

337.08 337.08

Capital Commitments:

Estimated value of contracts in capital account 
remaining to be executed (Net of capital advances)

58,500.00 Nil
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 Pa�ticulars                                                                         As At                       Year ended
       March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Lease payments recognized in 
 Statement of Profit & Loss du�ing the year 1,203.77 340.75

34) INTANGIBLES ASSETS RECOGNITION

a) Pursuant of a Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA") dated Ap�il 30, 2022, entered into 

between the company (Transferee) and M/s J K Technosoft Limited (Transferor), the 

transferor has sold its Personnel, Staffing & Training (PS&T) division to the company with 

effective date of 01.04.2022. The purchase consideration was dete�mined at ` 56,700.00 

Thousands towards transfer of business, based on the valuation ca��ied by the Registered 

Valuer, whereby the intangible assets in the nature of Customer Contracts (having more than 3 

years of relationship with transferor) and Employees alongwith Know-How (assembled 

workforce) in the PS&T business are transfe�red to the company. Based on independent 

assessment of purchase p�ice allocation ca��ied out by another registered value, the purchase 

consideration of ` 56,700.00 Thousands was segregated among va�ious intangible assets 

recognised in Note 10(B) as Customer Contracts (` 41471.62 Thousands); Assembled 

Workforce (` 11845.07 Thousands) & Goodwill (` 3383.31 Thousands).

 In addition to the above consideration, all the tangible assets in P&ST division of the transferor 

company are transfe�red to the transferee company based on their w�itten down value as on 

March 31, 2022, for ` 597.62 Thousands, as recognised in Note 10(A) (Prope�ty, Plant and 

Equipment ).

 Fu�ther as per the te�ms of BTA, all the existing customers of P&ST division of the transferor 

company are to be transfe�red to the transferee company, by way of execution of fresh 

contract or assignment/ novation of the existing contract, along with transfer of 

co�responding employees engaged with customers, with continuity of se�vices, in a phased 

manner based on transfer of customer contract to the transferee. The retirement dues of the 

transfe�red employees are computed on the effective date (i.e. Ap�il 01, 2022), and deductible 

from the consideration to be paid for the transfer of business. The net payable balance to the 

transferor, as per te�ms and conditions of BTA (fu�ther amended by third addendum to BTA 

dated August 31, 2023), is presented in Note 6 (Other Cu�rent Liabilities) as "Payable as per 

Business Transfer Agreement".

 b) Pursuant to Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA") dated September 29, 2023, entered 

into between the company (Transferee) and M/s Klaus IT Solutions P�ivate Limited 

(Transferor), the transferor shall transfer its subsiting clients by novating the existing se�vice 

contracts with such clients, in the name of the Transferee. The purchase consideration was 

dete�mined at ` 118,700.00 thousands towards transfer of business, based on the valuation 

ca��ied by the Registered Valuer, whereby the intangible assets in the nature of Customer 

Contracts (having more than 3 years of relationship with transferor) and Employees alongwith 

Know-How (assembled workforce) are transfe�red to the company. Based on independent 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)
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assessment of purchase p�ice allocation ca��ied out by another registered value, the purchase 

consideration of ` 118,700.00 thousands was segregated among va�ious intangible assets 

recognised in Note 10(B) as Customer Contracts (` 94,198.00 thousands); Assembled 

Workforce (` 16,115.00 thousands) & Goodwill (` 8,387.00 thousands). Other expenses like 

legal and consulting expenses, interest on bo�rowings recognised in Intangibles (on 

propo�tionate basis) aggregates to ̀  4,370.84 thousands.

35) Pursuant of a Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA") entered into by the company (Transferee) 

with M/s Klaus IT Solutions P�ivate Limited (on Feb�ura�y 07, 2024) and with Skandha IT 

Se�vices P�ivate Limited (on September 22, 2023) (collectively known as Transferors), the 

transferors have agreed to transfer their respective business unde�takings, comp�ising of 

their specific clients to the company. The aggregate purchase consideration was dete�mined 

at ` 98,700 thousands towards transfer of business, subject to successful novation of the 

underlying client contracts in the favour of the company. As per the te�ms of BTA, all the 

specified clients of the transferor companies are to be transfe�red to the transferee company, 

by way of execution of novation of the existing contract, along with transfer of co�responding 

employees engaged with customers, in a phased manner. A total sum of `40,200 thousands 

has been paid as advance by the company to the transferor companies, as disclosed in Note 

No. 12, pending settlement of final consideration amount, based on the actual novation of the 

underlying client contracts.

36) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from bo�rowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 

entity, including foreign entity ("Inte�media�ies") with the understanding, whether recorded in 

w�iting or othe�wise, that the Inte�media�y shall lend or invest in pa�ty identified by or on 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficia�ies).

 The Company has not received any fund from any pa�ty (Funding Pa�ty) with the 

understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entity identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficia�ies") or 

provide any guarantee, secu�ity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia�ies.

37) The company did not have any transactions with companies st�uck off under Section 248 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 du�ing the financial years.

38) No transactions to repo�t against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA 

pursuant to amended Schedule III:

(a) C�ypto Cu�rency or Vi�tual Cu�rency

(b) Benami Prope�ty held under Prohibition of Benami Prope�ty Transactions Act, 1988 and 

�ules made thereunder

(c) Registration of charges or satisfaction pending with Registrar of Companies.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)
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(d) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution 

or other lender.

(e) The Company has no any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of 

accounts that has been su�rendered or disclosed as income du�ing the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or su�vey or any other 

relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

39) No other mate�ial events have occu�red between the balance sheet date to the date of issue of 

these financial statements that could affect the values stated in the financial statements.

40) Previous year figures have been regrouped and recasted wherever necessa�y to confo�m to 

the cu�rent yea�'s classification.

41) Notes 1 to 41 fo�m an integral pa�t of the Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(All amount in ₹ Thousands, unless othe�wise stated)

The Accompanying notes fo�m an integral pa�t of the financial statements

As per our repo�t of even date

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Cha�tered Accountants
Fi�m's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Diensten Tech Limited

Sd/- 
(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pa�tner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27/06/2024 

Sd/- 
(Vipul Prakash) 
Managing Director 
(DIN:01334649)

Sd/- 
(Sanjay Kumar Jain) 
Director 
(DIN:01014176)

Sd/- 
(Siva Prasad Nandu�i)
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/- 
(Sumant Kuthiala)
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/- 
(Vibha Wadhwa)
Company Secreta�y 
(ICSI Mem. No. 29381)



Corporate Office: F-3, Sector-3, Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201302
Ph.: 0120-4606200/6300, Email : info@jkdtl.com

Registered Office: 7th Floor, A-2, LSC, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash-II, New Delhi-110048
Ph.: 011-40562187, Email : info@jkdtl.com


